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UM TED STATES OF AMERICA CRM NAL INDICTMENT
10

'rsp. 2:12-cR- 6 o 4PLADQ
11

VS. W OLATIONS:
12

(1) , 18 .U S.C. j1962(c) mld 1963: PaAcipation
13 A .K.A. Ao .M IN in a Racketeer Influenced Com zpt

' 

A K A SUPPOkT Qrg 'amzation tcotmt 1);
14 (Cotmts 1-2, 19)

18 U.S.C. j 1962(d): Conspiracy to
t5 (2j , Engage 'm : Racketeer Tnnuenced

A.K.A. G ,RA.F Compt Organization tcount 2);
16 (Cotmts 1-2, 3j, 44, 47)

' 1 .8 U S ..C j 1028(a)(1): Unlawful
17 (3) ALEXANDER KOSTYUKOV, Traffickm' y in and Produo 'tzon of Cottnterfeit

A.K.A.TEM P, ' Identifiçatzon Doouments or Authentlcatlon

18 A.K.A. KLBS, (Cotmts 1-2, 3-17) Features (Counts 3 -17);

19 (4) MACEO BOOZER III , . 18 ...
.
.U SIC. j 1028(a)(1): Ayempt to Unlawtul

A.K.A. XXXSIMO'NE , Traflicking in and Produchon of Cotmterfmt
20 A.K.A. ()4 , Identificatlon Documents or Authenticahon

A.K.A. EL PADRINO , Features lcount -18);
2 l A.K.A. .M R RIGHT,

JA K.A. MRDC87, 18 U.Y C! j 1028(a)(2): Cynspilacy to
22 (Cotmts 1-2, 3-17) Unlawfully Transfer Idlntlfcatlon

Docume ,nt Authenticatlon Featur ye and'False
' 

Iden 'tlfication Documerit tcount 19);23 (5) ,
A.K.A.

24 .A K.A. RAY. 18 ..U S C. 5 1028(a)(7) and (c)(3)(A):
(cotmts 1-2, j-17) Ilnlawful Transfez, Possessio .-n and euse of a

Means of Idenuscation (cotmi 20);25
(6) EDWAM  MONTECALVO ,

26 ' A.K.A NIGHTMARE, 18 U.S.C. j 1029ja)(2): Tramcking in ao
m
A K.A. -1-EM .11:.E44, Use of Counterfmt hnd Unatttborized Access

(Counts 1-2, 3-17, 22-55) Devices tcount 21);
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e

1 (7) ,
.A K.A D ATISTUTA,

2 (counts 1-2)

3 (81
A .K.A.

4 A.K.A. CC - -.TRADER,
A K.A. KBN GZA
(éounls 1-2, 20, 21-55)5

6 (9) JERMAINE SMITH ,
. A.K.A . SlRCH AR1,Y 57,
7 .A K.A. FAIRBUSINESSM AN,

(Cotmts 1-2, 61- 62)
8 .

(10) MAKR  HAGGERTY,
9 A.K.A. W AW ,

(Cotmts 1-2)
10 '( l 1 ) 

,

j 1 A.K.A. BANK M AN .AGER
A.K.A. DOCUMENT MAVAGER
A.K.A. COREY, (Counts 1-2, 61-6i)12

(12)13
A.K.A. ABAGNALEFRANK, (Cotmts 1-2)

14 (13)

A.K.A.DE ICA,15
(Counts 1-2)

16 '(14)
A.K.A. TRACKZ,17 

utasxA.K.A. B ,
.A K . A . N C U ,X18 

(counts 1-2, 22-55)

19 (15) QASG  MUKHTAR
,

A.K.A. CM JBE ,R20 

(cotmts 1-2, 56-60)

21 gjyj
A.K.A.22 
A K A. PATISTOTA, (Cotmts 1-2, 22-55)

23 (17j
A.K . .

24 (counts 1-2, 22-5/)

25 (18j
A K

26 d - ' 45)( otmts 1-2, 22-

18 U.S.C. j 1029(a)(3): Possessiùn of
FiReen or M ore Counterfeit and
Unauthorized Aocess Dlvices
(Counts 22 -55))

18 U.j.C. j' 1029(a)(4): Unlawful
Possession, Prpduc#gp pnd Trnfsclcing in
Device-Mnking Equtpïent -' ' ' .' :
(Copnts 56-60))

18 U.S.C. j 1029(a)(4): Conspiracy to
Unlawful Possession, Prodpchon and
Trnm oldng in Device-M nklng Equipment

tcounts 61-62); and

18 U.S.C. 9 2: Aiding and Abetting (Counts
1, 3-17, 18, 20, 21, 22-56. 61-62).

2
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1 (19)
A K.A. BOW L

2 (éounts 1-2, 22-55)

3 E20J
A.K.A. DORBIK

'+ , A K A. MSTAPôR,
. . .,: ..(.g. tjârjt .z)
5

E21J MICHAEL LOFTON,
6 A.K.A. ICII,LIT
A K.A. LOFEW Y,
(éounts 1-2, 3-17)7

: 122) SHWANG GOU,
A K.A. CDER,
(éounts 1-2, 3-17)9

10 (23) DAVID RAY CAMEZ,
A.K.A. BADM AN

' A K.A. DOCTORSLX,1 1 j
( otmts 1-2, 3-17)

12 (24) CAG RON HARRISON
,

A K.A. KIT,OBIT,13 é( 
ounts 1-2, 3-17)

14 (25)
.A K . A . Q IL L E .R15 
(counts 1-2, 3-1i)

16 a su(26) DUVAUOHN BU
A K.A. M AC ,17 
(éounts 1-2, 21, 61-62)

18 27j Fu om cK luo- s,(
A.K.A ISTUN NA,19 

colmts 1-2)(

20 (282 Jol.m DoE 1,
.A K.A SENNAX  1 ,

21 (cotmts 1-2, 3-17)

22 r29) JOl.m  DoE z,
-

A K.A. MORFIY,
23 (éounts 1-2, 3-17)

24 (30) JOHN DoE 3,
x  K .A. GRUBBR,

25 (couna 1-2, 18)

26

3
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1 (31) JOHN DOE 4 )
A K.A. MAXXTRô, )

2 (éounts 1-2) )
)

j 822 Jolm  DoE 5, )- 

.A K.A. ELI-IB, )
j .tcounts 1-2) )

)
5 (33) JOHN DOE 6, )

.A K.A. FOZZY, )
(cotmts 1-2, 22-55) )6

)
7 (34) JOHN DOE 7, )

A.K.A. vrrRt-  )
A K.A. LERMENI-OV, )8
(dounts 1-2, 22-55) )

9 )
(35) )

1c A.K.A. PANTHE .R ) .
.A .K .A E U? H O RI aê )
A.K.A. DARKMTFI, )l 1
(Cotmts 1-2, 22-55) )

12 )
(36) JOl-IN DOE 8, )
A K.A. TM, )13 é 

5) )( otmts 1-2, 22-5
)14

(37) JOHN DOE 9, )
A.K.A. zooM'sR )15 
A x A. osptrrA''r

, )é '
( ounts 1-2, 22-55) )16

)
(38) JOHN DoE l .0 )17 
A K.A. c> -rum o'k, )
(dounts 1-2, 22-55) )18

)
(39) JOHN DOE 1 -1 )19 
A K.A. coxslcildm , )
(dounts 1-2, 61-62) )20 

)
DEFBNDANTS. )21

22

23

24

25

26

4
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1 THE G JURY CR ARGES TR AT:

2 GENEQ AI, AT,LEGATIONS

3 W e following General M legations are redleged and incoporated în toto by reference in

4 Countoqqe. m icipate ipaRaclseteerlv uencedcom lpto. ygarti>tion) and CptmtTwo (Cànspiracy .
. 

' ' -  . 
- - -M'' -  ' ' v 

' 
*' - - *' '

5 . to Engage in a Racketeer lnfluenced Co= pt Orgaization) herein.

6 TRE ENTERPRISE

7 1. At a1l times relevmlt to this indictm ent,

8 (1) '.k.a. A. dmin a.k.a. Support;
' (2) ak.a. Graf; '
9 E3) AI.E ER KOS OV a.ka. Temp mk.a. Klbs;

(4) MACEOBOOZtRhI a.kvmxc simonemka. G4 mk.a.Elpadrino mk.mMr.

10 (5) a
-ka. Ray W ong a.k.q. Ray;

11 (6) ED ' CAS,VO avk.a Nlghtmare mk.a. Tenureo ;
V) mk.A lbatismta; ,

12 (8q a.k.m a.k.a. CC - -'rrader
k.a. krngza;:.

13 (9) JERM AINE SO TH a.k.a. Sirohadies7 mk.a. f'airbusinessman;
(10) M AKW. , HAGGERW  mk-a. Wave;

14 (1 1) mk.a. Bnnk Manager a-k-a. Docllmept
. .. ; a. . . .

15 (121 mk.a. Abagnaleânnlc;
(13) a-k.a. Devioai
g14) à. .'.à. Trackz a-k-a. Bulba mk-a. Ncux;16 

. .(15) ASm  M1': TKHTAR a.k.a. Cèiber;
y (16) 'a.km a-k-a. Patistola;1

(17) mk-a. Source;
(18) a.kva. C4rd3R; '18
(19) a-k-a. Bpwl;

jv (20) ark-a: Dorbik a.k.a. Matador;

2 SHIY> G GoU a.k.a. cder;(2 )20 
RA: cavy:z a.k a. Bad Man a.k.p. Doctorsex;(23) oAvm  r

(24) ' '' 3 . soN a.k.a. Kilobit;2 1
(25) mk.... Qiller;
(26) DIJVAUGHN'BUT à. ' .à. ackmnnn;22 j

j xxs a k.a lsplnnk(27) FREDRIPK T O .
(28) JöHN DOE 1 a-ka SemAao7l;23
(29) JOHN DOE 2 a.ka. MorRy;
(301 JOHN DOà 3 â.k.a. Gmber;24
(31) JOITN DOE 4 a.k.a. Msxxko;
(32j, JOHN DOE 5 a.k.a. Elit3;15 j

; 6 a k a. Fopy;(33) JOIm  DO . .
(341 JOHN DOE 7 a.k.a. .vltrum mkva. Lermentov;26
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1 (351 k.a. Panther mk.a. Euphoric mk.a. Darkmth;
(36) JOIlN DOE 8 a.k.a. ;

2 (371 JOIIN DOE 9 a.k.a. Zoomer a.k.a. Deputat;
(38) JO'IG  DOE 10 mk.a. Centurion; and

3 (39) JOHN DOE 11.a.k.a. Consigliori;1 . .

# 
'

4 . . tlmdrfeniants hçrein, andothersknownandunknown, are mqmbers of, enpl.oyedb. y.Y dassoçi.ates

5 of a criminal orgnnlzation, hereaAer referred to as ççthe Cazder.su orgnnizationy'' vhose members

6 engage in acts of identity theft and lnancial gaud, including, but not lim ited to, acts involving

7 kafficking in stolen means of identification; kafscking in, production and use of countedbit

s identification documents; identity theR; tram cking in, production and use of tmauthorized and

9 counterfeit access devices; and bnnlc gaud; and whose members interfere whh interstate and foreign

10 commerce through acts of identity theft and fmancial fraud. M embers and associates of the

j 1 Cardensu orgnnization operate principally in Las Vegas, Nevadw and elsewhere.

12 The Cardensu orgnnization, including its leadership, members, and u sociates,

13 constimtes an tçenterprisey'' as defuied by Title 1 8, United States Code, Section 196144), that is, a
. 

'

group of individuals associated in f/t, although not a legal entity. The enteprise constimtes an14 
s .

ongoing orgnnization whose m em bérs filnution as a continuing ''nl-t for a com. mon purpose of15 
.

aclzieving the objectives of the enteprise. The enteprise is engaged in, and its activities affect,16 
. .

interstate and foreign comm erce.17

PURPOSES OF TITR ENTERPRISE18

The purposes of the entem rise include, but are not limited to, tlw following:'
19 .

A. to enrich the members and associates of the entem rise tbzough the nnlawful
20

kafficldng in: means . of identification, docllment-making . implements,
2 1

counterfeit identilcation docllm ents, device-maldng equipment, and,
22

tmauthorized and counterfeit access devices;
23

B. to create, m aintain, arld control a marketplace for the diskibuûon of stolen
24

property, such as victims' personal and financial means of identifcation;
25 'J

26

6
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1

j

5

6

7

j

9

4.

and pe cipate

following:10

11

12

13

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

26

C. to protect the entem rise and its members 9om detecdow apprehension and

proseçution by law enforcement;

D. to preserve ahd proteof the operatiom  and proft of the rntezw ise through the

use of disciplhey.expulsion, and.plhtl act!- of.retribqtion; and

E to romote and enhance the reputation and slnnding of the enterprise and its
. P

members am ozi g rivals.

G ANS Ae  < THODS OF THE EU ERPRISE

Among themeans andmethodsbywhichthe detendants andtheir associates conduct

in t12 conduct. of the affairs of the enterprise include, but are not limited to, the

A. Members of the enterprise artd their associates did trafjic iri and produce: did

attempt io trnm c in and pyoduce, and did conspire to traflic in and produce,

ùounterfeit identlcation docllments, which affects interstate and foreir

C0rnnnerCC.

B. Members of the enteprise and their associates did llnlawfully transfer, did

attempt to llnlawhzlly kansfer, and did conspire to tmlawllly transfer

cotmterfeit id4ntfficatijm docllments, which affects interstate and foreir

Com m erce.

C. Members of theenterpriseand theirassociates didpossess docllment-making

implements, did attempt to possess docllm entrmaldng implements, and did

conspire to possess docllment-making implements, which affbots interstate

and forei>  comm erce.

Mem bers of the enterprise .and their associates did tmlawfully tansfer,

possess and use, did attemptto unlawfully trnnqfer, possess and use, and did

conspire to llnlawfully transfer, possess and use a m eans of identifcation of

Case 1:12-mj-02359-TEB   Document 1   Entered on FLSD Docket 03/19/2012   Page 7 of 50



15

B.

G.

H.

another person in the commission of and in cbnnèction with the crime of .

Bnnk Fraud, wllich a/ects interstate and foreir commeroe.

Members of the enterprise and théir associates did h'nf'sc in and use, did

attempt to traffic iv apd. usç, qnd didlpnspire to traffic in an llse counterfeit '

and ' unauthorized access deyices, which affects interstate ànd foreign

COY M CTCC.

Membqrs of the enterprise and their associates did possess, did attempt to

possess, arid did conspire to #ossess ffteen (35) or more .cotmterfeit and

tmauthorized aocess devices, which affects interstate and forei>  commerce.

Members of tlzé entermise and their assooiates did trax c in andpossess! did

attempt to traftic'in and possess, and did conspire to traffic in and possess

device-mnklng equipment, wMoh affects interstate and foreign commerce.

Members of the enterprise and their associates did plan, attempt to plan, and

conspire to plan, w ith tlze intent to defraud, schemes to unlawfully obtain

money and property 9om bnnkn and other financial instimtions by way of

fraud, and m aterial misreprçsentations and false promises.

M em bers of the enteprise and their mssociates did use vmious mennK of

v 

' '

commllnlcation desil ed to protect the membership's anonymity and to

provide security for the 'oriminal organization 9om attack by other rival

criminal orgnnizations and from 1aW enforcement detection, including but

not limited to, 1he use'of:

Variöus website forumn and chat rooms, such as Carder.info,

Carder.su, Crdsu.su, Cardtr.biz, and Crder.pro, which are

conkolled bythe Carder.suorgnnizationforuse as their online

gathering places, that is, as ttvirttzal clubhousesy'' which

8
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provide secure meeting locations for the members and

2 associates of the crimlnal organization;

. l . f

3 (ii)' PHvatmessaglgt''pM'tlwMchisanon-fonxm widemesàage

4 sentbçlweçnindivi. d'm. lmembeoonWlcn'ml'nz'orgnnl'v>ion's

5 Website fornms;

(iii) E-mail, some of which are encrypted andpasswordprotected,

or use service providers located outside the Urzited Stéte:;

(iv) 1CQ ohat, which is a free instant messaging electronio

communication services providtd by ICQ,' Inc., a

subsidiazy of AOL: lCQ user acootmts are identified by a .

Universal Identiscation Number (''Um '');

(v) Proxies, which are achieved bybounczg from 6ne computer

to another to hide a member's tnze oliginating P address;
13
. 

.

4 4< ,,(vi) Virtual Private Network, ( VPNS ), which are similar to a14 
.

pro' xy, but with the additioil of creatingan encrypted. ëmnel that
15

cnnnot be morlitored; arld
16

(vii) protected drop sites in the District of Nevadw and elsewhere,
1 7

in the event that there is a need to trnnqport, trailsfer, and
18

receive physical items of contraband.

21 Rotzs OFT>  bEFENDANTS

Or- eanizational Hierarchy

5. Leaders, members and mssociates of the Carder.su Orgnnization have defned roles .

in the enterprise. At all times relevant to this indicmient, the defendants participated in the operation
.( '

25 and the management of the enterprise as fbllo'ws:

26

9
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1 a. Adminiskator - Defendaàt (1) a.k.a. Admin a-k.a.

2 Support, (hereo er çç(1) ''), is the Admirlistratbr of the Carder.su orgnnization.
. 

. 
'

3 (1) serves ms the head of the governing council for the criminal orgnnization who..

- . .. 4 collemivelyxconkolthe destiny of thq entçmrise. The ad. rp inisàatorho dlqs daptord. aypxp>gçmeht .

5 decisions of the organization, as well as long-term skategic plnnnl-ng forits continued viability. As
f

6 such, (1) cts as a leader of ttlé epterprise, by appointing moderators, and directing

7 othet members and associates of the enterprise in canying out lmlawftzl and otlwr aotivities in

8 furtherance of the conduct of the enterprise's affah's. E1) determlenes which

9 individuals can become and remain members of the Carder.su organizatiim. (1)

10 repzlates the ftmctions, responsibilities and levels of aècessto information aocordedto each member.

1 1 . E1) bestows the rewards accorded members for their loyalty to the Crder.su

12 otganization, and sets the plnisbments to be meted out to members evidencinj disloyalty to the

13 orgnnlzation. (1) decides when, how, and tmder what circllmstances to attack m)d

14 to retaliate against members of rival criminsl orgnnizations and their associated Intemet webyite

15 forams. As the adminiskator, (1) ms full access td, andprivileges on, the computer

16 servers hosting the Carder.su orgnn' ization's websites. (1) has ultimateresponsibility

17 for the adm inistration, maintenance, anonymity and sectuity of the Carder.su organization's

1 g com puter servers, as well as for the conteht of the Carder.su organization's lnternet website forums.

(1) s cdminal activities in furtherance of the entemrise. includey but are not limit:d19 
. .

to, the commission of conspiracy to Hnlawfully kansfer and sell false identitkation domlments, and
20 .

access device gaud.2 1

b. Moderators - Defendants (2) .à.k.a. Gratl.22 
.' 

( . '
(hereafterçslz) 3, and (31) JOHNDOE4 a.kla. Maxxko ('lpreafterï%l3l) M AXXrI'RO''),23 

. 
.

are M oderators within the Carder.su orgnml'zation. As such, these dèf>ltdants act as lqaders of the
24 . .. .. .. : L

enteprise, directing other members and associates ilz oarrying out unlawful and other activities in
25

furtherance of the conduct of the enterprise's nfi-airs. M oderalors are members of the Carder.su
26

10
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1 orgnnl'zation's governing colmAel; as such, they oversee and manage one or more subjed matter

2 specilc arems on the Carder.su ùrgnnization's websites that either fall within an area of tlw

3 Moderators' expertise, or cover their geographic location. As Moderators, (2) and (31q

MAXXTRO #ssist (1J in monitoG g and policing the Qal/er.su prganiRtion's .J*% !$ - - - ' . - * . . . . . .

5 websites by editing and deleting members' posts on tv se fornms and by mediating disputes nmong

6 the m embers. M oderators also gequently serve ms Reviewers for particular products or seM ces

7 provided through the enterprise * 111 which they have an expertise. (2) s crimihal

i ities in furtherance of the enterprise include, but ar' e not limited to conspiracy to #osseqs and8 act V
. ï

9 possession of fifteen (15) or more counterfeit and tmauthorized access devices'. (31) MAXXTRO'S
.
'

10 criminal activities in furtherance of the enterprise include, but are not limitTd to, transfer and use of

1 1 means of identification, and possession of sReen (15) or more cotmterfeit and tmauthorized access

12 devices.

j 3 c. Reviewers - The Carder-su orge zation allows members to sell conkaband,

14 including, but not limited to, ootmterfeit docllments and stolen bnnk account and credit card

informationby way of the Carder.su orgmlization's websites to furth. erthe activities of the enterprise.15 
.

Reviewers exnmine and test producté and serviqes that members of the Carder.su organizauon wish16

to advertise and sell on its websites. Once Reviewers compete theiz exnmination of the pzoducts and
17

services, they post a written summary of that exnmination ortesting on the Carder.su organization's18

websites. A favorable written review is a prerçquisite to selling contraband on the websites. W hilè
19 '

most Reviewers primadlyserve inthe capacity of Administrator orM oderator forthç eflterpriseyany
20

qualified individual, even a general member. can be appointed by the Adminiskator to conduct a
2 1 . .

review. M y member of the Carder.su orgnnir.ntion could be appointed to serve as a Reviewer at any
22

time.2 3
.

d. Vepdors - Vendoès advertise and sell products, services, and other contraband
24 '

to m embers of the Carder.su orgnnization by way of the Cardensu organization's websites aRer
25 .

receiving a favorablewrittenreview from aReviewer. Once aReviewer is designated, aprospective
26 . 

.

. 1-1
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1 Vendor is required to sM p multiple snmples of the product or provide the reviewer w1Q1 aooess to.

2 the vendor's seNices to faciliOte completion of the review. Tllis contact between the prospeotive .

3 Vendor and the Reviewer is usuall# made through private email messaging or through a public pobt

.4. in tho appropriate sectîon on tlm' Cardpf.su pggnniz>lipn's N bsites. ..

5 ( i) Defendant (3) A' I,E ER KOS OV a.k.a- Temp a-k.a.

6 Klbs', (hereafter çç(3q KOS OV''), is a Vendor of omshout services in the Cafder.su

7 orgnnization. (31 KOS OV's cashout servicesprovide members ofthecarder.suorganizadon

g with a m ethod to tansfer fhnds, typically used in cormection with obtainlng and laundering illicitly

9 obtained flmds from stolen bsnk and credit oard accounts. (3) KOSTYUKOV receives a fee,

10 genearlly between fortpfive percent (45%) and sixtptwo percent (62%) of the total ftmds

1 1 laundered, inexohn geforprovidlgmemberse lcashout services. (3) KOS OV's criminal

12 actikities in flzrtherance of the enteprise inolude, but are not limited to, the producion and

I 3 traflicking in colmterfeit identifcation doctlments,

,4 ( ii) Defepdant (4) M ACEO BOOZERIII a.k.a- Xu simonea.k.a. 04
, 

1

15 mk.a. El Padrino a.k.a. M.1.. Right mk.at mrdc87, (hereafter $$ (4) BOOZER 1H''), is a Vendor of

'6 Rdllmps,nthatis, stolen and otherwise stèlen credit cm'd and debit cazd acoountdata, intlm Carder.su1

17 orgnnization. g4) BOOZERIII sells d'lmpsto mbmbers forprices rangingfrom tmeendollars ($15)

to one hlmdred fifty dollars ($l 50), depending on the quantity purohased and the geograplzical18

location from which the d'lmps originate. Dllmps from the United States are sold as the lemst
19

expensive and d'lmps from the Etlrope are sold as the most expensive. (4) BOOZERHI'S oriminal20

activities in fllrtherance of the enterprise include, kut are not limited tb, the production and2 1

trafficldng in counterfeit idenifcationdomlments, Odpossession of fiReen (15) or more counterfeit22

and unauthorized access devices.23

( iii) Defeddant (5) mk.a. a.k.a. Ray,
24

ç$ ;'' d f terfeit plastic wlzich is a device-mnking hnplement(hbxreaAer g5) )
, is a Ven or o colm ,25 

.

used tö produce counterfeit credit cards, in the Carder.su orgnnization. (5) sells blnnk
26

12
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1 cbunterfeit plastic cards to members for twenty dollars ($20) to twenty ;ve dollars ($25) eaclz,

2 depending on the nmotpt ordered, and he requires a nlirzimllm order of lifty (5Q). (5) so

3 sqlls embossed counterfeit crrdit cards for sixtyfve dollrs ($65) to seventy five dollars ($75) each,

4 V th a minimllm order of ten (10). Additionally. f51 also adye/ses op the Cardensu

5 orgnnization's websites as a Vendor of d'lmps, that is, stolen Visa credit oard aocount nllmbers

' 6 priced from stnndard cards at ' dollars ($30) e#oh, to platinnm or business cards at forty Gve

7 dollars ($45) each. (5) s oriminal activities in flldherance of the enterprise include. bùt are
$: 4 .

8 not limited to, the production and kafscldng in cotmterfeit identiscation docllments, unlawful

j knnqfer and use of a means of identification, and conspiiacy to possess device mnking equip>ent.

10 (iv) Defendant (6) EDW ARD MONTECAI,VO a.k.aNlghtmaze mk.a.

1 1 Tenure44, (hereafter ç'(61 M ONTECAI,VO'), is avendor of dllmps in the Cmdensu orgnnization
. . 

'

12 who alsô provides to members a dllmpà cheoldng servicq, wllioh checks w1t1: the issuing Gnancial
. 

*

13 institution to make sure, at the time of the member's purchase, thatthe credit card éccotmt being sold

14 is still valid and open. (6) MONTECAI',VO'S crM inal activities in' furtherance of the enterprise
g 

' . 
.

15 include, but arenotlimited to, theproduction andtrne cking in cotmterfeit identification docllments,

6 possession of domlment-mnking equipment, and possession of fiAeen (15) or more cotmterfeit and1 
.

' 

unauthorized access devices.17

Defendant (7) a.k.a lbatistmw (lwreafter tt(7)18

'') is a Vendor of ctllmps in tlïe Cardei.su ôrganization, as well as a Ve'ndor of coupterfeit
19 '

oredit cards, cotmterfeit hologrnms, and sir atuze panels thatoan be used to manufacture cptmterfeit
20

credit cards. (7) ells blnnk plastic cards to members for ten dollars ($ 10) to sAeen dollars
2 1

($15) each, depending on the quantity ordered.' (7) sells the ootmterfeit holornms and
22 .

siguatures for one dollar ( $1) each. (7) s cdminal activities in furtherance of the enteprise .
23

include, but are not limited to, possession of fiReen (15) or more oounterfeit andtmauthorized access
24

devices.25

26

13
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1 . ( vi) Defendant (8) a-k-m

2 avk.a. CC - - Trader mkva. Kengz,w lereaRer çç(8) '), is a Vendor in the

C der su organization of S'CVV '' that is stolen credit card account data wlzioh typically contains3 ar 
. , ,

.4 ' all ofa.cardhol. d.erfs.informwtj op, except rms..jlï: magneic Yaçk infhrmatiop pontained on thç rpm,r. Mf

5 the physical credit card. CVV information includes an accotmt holders nnm'e, date of birth, Social.

6 Secudtynllmberxaddress, telephone mlm ber and mother's m aiden name, aswell as the security code

7 on the rear of the credit card. (8) also sells to members, for ten dollars ($10) eachy

t len Paypal accounts, which inclu' de usemnme qnd the pmssword needed to access the Paypal 'g s o

9 accotmt. (8) also sells çTullz,'' wltich include full name, billing address, credit oard

fo accotmtnumbez,expiration date, Personal IdentifcationNxlmbers (tT1Ns''), Social Securitynllmber,

1 1 mother's maiden nnme, date of birth and the security code on the rear of a credit carda for a victim

12 account for twenty dollars ($20) each, with a minimllm order of two htmdred dollrs ($200). M so,

13 (8) sells çtEnroll/coBsy''wlzich include fullnnme, billing address, creditcard accotmt

14 nllmber, expiration date, Pm , Social Secm ity mlmber, m other's maiden nnme, date of birth, the

ls sectlrity code on the rear of a credit card, and the usernnme and password to access the accotmt

online, for one htmdred forty dollars ($140) to two htmdred dollars ($200) each, depending on 'th e16

nmount of money in the victim account. (8) s oriminal activities in flmherance of the17

enteprise include, but are riot limited to, t'ransfer anduse of means of identiication, aro d possession
18

of fiReen (15) or more cotmterfeit apd.. unautjorized access devioes.19 
.

( vii) Defendant (9) J.ERMA.INE SMITH a.k.a. Sircharlies; a.k.a.
20

ts 1i'' i ' Vendor'of cotmtedbitplastic and ootmterfeitcreditFairbusinessman, (hereafter (9) SMIT ), s a21

cards inthe Carder.su orge zation. (9) SM IYH'S criminal activities in furtherance ofthe çnterprise
22

include, but art not limited to, possession of fifteen (15) or more countçrfeit and unauthorized aocess2
3

devices, and conspiracy to possess and possession of device-m nking equipment. .
24

(viii) Defendant (10) M AKYIaHAGGER'FY a-kva. Wave, (hereo er t'(10)
25 . .

HAGGERTV'), is a Vendor of cotmterfeit identlcation docllments and counterfeit credit cards in
26
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1 the Cardensu organization. (10) HAGGER'I'Y mmwfactures and sells counterfeit drivers licenses
J '

2 to members for the states of Californiw Texr, W isconsiw Ohio, Rhode Island, Nevadw .

. 
. * 

(,
3 Permsylvania, Illinnis, Floridw Louisianw Arizona, Hawii, South Carolina, Georgia and New

. .4 Jetsey; as.wellums Britiqh Colllmbiw Capa4a. n e prices range hom one hppd.rçd (pllgrs f$.1q0).to .

5 two httndred dollars ($200), depehding on the state. (10) HAGGERI'Y also sells blnnk counterfeit

6 plastic for hventy dollars ($20) each and embossed counterfeit credit cards' for tlzirty dollcs ($30)

7 each. (1 0) HAGGERI'Y criminal activities in furtherance of the enterprise include,' but are not

limited to, conspiracy to proéuce counterfeit identifcation dpçllments, possession of sAeen (15) or8

9 m ore cotmterfeit and unauthorizçd access devices, and conspiracy to possess device-m nking

10 equipment. .

1 1 ( ix) Defendant (1 f ) a-k.a. Bnnk

12 M anager a.k.a. Document M anager. a.k.a. çorey, (hereaier tçI11) '), is a Vendor of

13 cotmterfeit identification docllments, stolen qr oiherwise stolen comorate accotmt information,

14 dllmps, and counterfeit credit cards in the Carder.su orgnnizatiou, (1 1) s criminal aotivities

1 5 in furtherance of the entemrise iliclude, but àre not limited to, possession of fifteen (1 5) or more

6 counterfeit and unauthorized access devices, and coùspiracy to possess device-making eqùipment.
1

j./ ' ( x) Defendant (12) .k.a. Aba>alefrnnk, (hereaRer

1 g t:(12) ') is a Vendor of dllmps in the Carder-su organization. (12) sells members blllk

quantities of one hundred (100) mixed Visa and Mastercard aocounts for onethousapd five hundred19

dollars ($1,500) and one htmdzed (100) American Express cards for one'thousand dollars ($1,000).20 
. .

(12) s criminal activities in furtherance of the enterprise includt, but are not limited to.2 1

unlawful transfer and use of a mennn of identilcation, and possession of tifteen (15) or more22

counterfeit and unauthorized acoess devices. . . .

23 '. .

( xi) Defendant (1j.) .k.a. Devicw (here-nler
24

'ç(13) '), is a Vendor in the Carder.su organization of counterfeitfcredit cards, as
25 . .

well as cotmterteit ikolovnms that can be used to manufac> e èotmterfeit credit cards.26

1 5
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1 (13) sells blnnk cotmtedtit plneic cardi to members for forty five dollars ($45)

2 each and embossed coupterfeit credit cards fot 'sevehty 5ve dollars ($75) each.

3 (13) s pdces for the counterfeit hologrnms viry by the quantity purohased.

... .- 4. (1 3). 's crimlnsl activities-in. fllrlbemngç of. tlw -çntemrbt-in. ç.l.ud.. e, b#. are not .

5 limited to, possession of Kfteen (1 5) or more counterfeit and unauthorized access devices, and .

6 conspiracy to possess and posstss on of device mn 1ng equ pm
: .

7 ( xii) Defendant I14J a.k-a. Trackz mka. Bulba

8 mk.a. Ncux, (hereafter t$(14) ''), is a Vendor in the Carder.su orgnnization of dlxmps.

9 (14) sells members such a llge volxlme of product that he has oreated arï automated

10 website, which he advertises on the Carder.su organization's websites. (142 s

1 1 automated website allows members to 1og into and purchmse stolen N d otherwise stolen credit card

12 account data without personal interaction w111: (14) (14) 's w#bsite has

13 a simple interface that allows mem bers to searoh for the particular type of oredit oard lnform ation

' 14 thoy want to buy, add the nllmber of accounts they wish to purchmse to their ''shopping cart'' and then

15 check out. Payment of Gmds is automatically deducted from an already-established accountfnnded

16 through L. R.a an on-line digtal ctuwncy'pam ent system. Upon checldng out, the ptlrohmsed credit

17 card acbount data is available for the members to download. (14) sells each stolen

1'g account nllmber for approximately twenty dollars ($20). (14) s criminal activities in

furtherance of the enterprise include, but are not limited to, conspiracy to possess m14 josse?sion of19

fmeen (15) or more couhterfeit and .tmautlzorized acoess devices.20

(xiii) Defendant (15) QASIRMUIf'HTARR.k.a. Caliber, (hereaRersftlsq2 1 .

MUKIITAW'I, is avendorhthe Carder.su orgnnization of counterfeitplastic and counterfeitcredit22

cards, as well' as counterfeit holopams and signature pu els that can be used to mmmfacture23 
.

counterfeit credit cards. (15) M UKHTAR sells blqnk cotmterfeit plasic cards to membera.for24

ftfteen dollars ($15) each and embossed counterfeit credit cards for twenty dollars ($20) each.25

Counterfeit credit cards w1111 a photograph or clzip on them cost twenty five dollars ($25) un-26

16
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*

1 . embosseda and ' dollars ($30) embossed. IISI.M TTICHTAR sells counterfeit cards with both

2 cMp and photograph for thirty dollars ($30) tm-embossed, and thirty five ($35) embossed.

3 (15) M UKHTAR'S pricès for ihe coimtedbit holograms vary by the quantity purohased.

4 (.15) .MJ-JICH, TAR'.S crimhml-actiyities in furth. erançe pf jlvçntqrpxisv. qçlud..r, b,ut pre not lipited

5 to, possession of lReen (15) or more copnterfeit and tmauthorized access devioes, and conspiraéy

6 to possess and possession of device mnklng equipment.

7 ( xiv) Defendant (161 a.k.a. mk.a. Patistoà,

8 . (hereafter $:(16) '), is avendorof CVVS in tlle Cardensu orgazzization. (16) sells the

9 CVVS through an automatedwebsite,whichhe advertises on the Carder.su organization's websites.

10 (16) s website allows members to view llis products by looking up specifc bnnk

1 1 identification nllmbers (ç%m s''), and by looking up the geographical location of the victim Cvvs.

12 (1@ also sells a lookup service to members that they can use to make sure the CVVj are

13 valid at the time the member purchases them. (16) 's crlminal activities in fneheranoe of the

14 entep rise include, but m'e not limitedto, lfnlawful kansfer and use of a means of identificatiol and

15 possession of fifteen (15) or lore countbrfeit and tmauthorized access deviçes.

) 6 Defendant (17q a.k.a. Source, (htree er t$(17)

17 ''), is avendor of dllmps inthe Carder.su orgnnization, wbichhe sells to members atprices

lg ranging from twelve dollars ($12) to one htmdred fifty dollars ($150), depending on the quantity

purchased and the geovaplzical.location from wlzich the dllmps originate. (17) sells19

dllmps *om the United States as the least expensjve, and d'lmps from Europe, the Middle Emst and20

Asia as the most expensive. so has an automated website, which he advertises on the2 1

Carder.su organization's websites. (17) website allows members to look up dllmps by22

Bm  to purchase accotmts issued from a particular financial instituuon. (17) criminal23

i furtherance of the enterprise include, àut lre not limited toa conspiracy to possess andacfivities n24

possession of fifteen (15) or more counterfeij qnd llnnuthorized access devices.25 
.

26

17
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1 ( xvi) Defendnnt (18J mk.a. C4r(I3R (hereo er çt(1s)

2 '), is a Vendor in the Cardensu orgnnization of Cvvs, which contain full nnme, bjlling

3 address, credit oard accotmt nllmber, exphation date and the security oode onthe rear of a creditc<d,

4 . for tlw.victim accounts.. (18) qç1J., Re QVVC to pepbers througy.bsautpmated. website.

5 E18) advertises Mswebsiteonthe Crder.suorgnnl'aion'swebsites, andhis advertisement
;

6 includes llis Universal IdentilcationNlxmber (ç$U1N'') which facilitates member-to-member RICQ''
. 

'

7 chats. ICQ chat is a free instant messaging eleckonic commllnication service provided by ICQ, Inc.,

8 a subsidiary of AOL. (18) also sells Fullz, wllich include full nnme, billing adfess, credit

9 card accolmtnllmber, expiration date, Social Security nllmber, mother's maidennnme, date of birth,

10 the security code on the rear of a credit card, and occasionally the PIN. (18) s criminal

1 1 activities in furtherance of tlw e' nterprise inglude, but are not limited to, possession of fiReen (1 5)

d thorized aècess divlce's.12 or môre counterfeit an tmau

13 ( xvii) Defendant (19) .k.a. Bowl, (hereafter $t(19)

14 '), is a Vendor in the Cardensu orgnnization of C'Vvs, which he sells through his

15 automatedFebsite. (19) dvertists his website onthe Carder.suorganization's websites.

16 (19J s criminal activities in furth. erance of the enterprise include, but are not limited to,

17 possession of tm een (15) or more counterfeit and tmauthorized access devices.

( xviii) Defendant (20) a.k.a. Dorbik a.k.a.18

Matador, (hereaAer t$(20) '), is a Vehdor in the Crder.su orgnnization of ''bullet19

'' i d infrmstructtu.e for criminal websites, including the Carder.suproof hosting serv ces an20

orgnnization's websites. d'Bullet proof hosting'' is a term of art utilized by carders to describe an
21

. Internet Sezvice Provider C$ISP'') that will allow an individual to lnm a website that contains illegal22

content, such as a fake website utilized f. or ç'phiyhing,'' a criminal carding forum (e.g., the Carder.su23 .

organization's websites), or an automated website that sells d,llmps, Stphislling'' is targeted method
24

. 
*

of obtainpngpersonal or financiél infermationv typicàlly done by the use of emails or cotmterfeit web.
25

pages presented to a potential victim that induces the victim tmder false pretenses to give their
26

18
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1 informationto the attacker. (20) 's criminal activities in furtherance ofthy ento rise .

. 2 include, but are not limited to, conspiracy to possess fiheen (15) or more counterfeit and

3 tmauthorized access devices.

4 . ( xix) . Defendant p. 0)' J. 011N ..pp. E. 3 a.k.a. ..fkuber (hemaft. er çç(30) .

5 GRUBEW ') is a Vendor of counterfeit identifcadon domlments in the Carder.su orgnnization.''

6 (302 GRD ER mantlfactures and sells courderfeit drivers licenses to members for t1+ states of

öllio Rhode Islanda Kevada Permsylvania Illinois Floridw7 Califoe a, Texas, W isconsin, , , , ,

8 Louisiana, Arizonw Hawaii, South Carolina, Oeorgia arld Newlersey, as well as British Colllmbiw

9 Canada. The prices range from one htmdred RRy dollars ($150) to two htmdred dollm's ($200),

I 0 depending on the state. (30) GRUBER'S criminal activities in furtherance of the enterprise inc'lude,

1 1 but are not limited to, conspiracy to produce counterfeit identifi. oation documents, and possession
. o

12 of fifteen (15) or more cotmterfeit and tmauthorized access devices.

1 3 ( xx) Defendant (j2) JOIG  D'OE 5 a,k.a. E1it3 (hereafhr tç(32) ELIT3'')

14 is a Vendor irl the Cardensu orgnnization of Fullz, which include full nnme, billing address. credit

15 cazd accotmt nllmber, expiration date, P1N,.Socja1 Sepurity nllmber, mother's maiden nnme; date of

birth and the security code on the rear of a credit card, at plices of ;ve dollars ($5) to svven dollars16

($7) each, wit,h a minimllm order of fifteendollars ($15). (32) ELIT3 also sells Enroll/COBs, which17 
.

includes the victim's full nnme, billing address, credit card account number, expiration date, Social18

Sectzrity nllmbef, mother's maiden namé, date of birth, the security code on the rear of a credit card,19

driver license nlxmber, mother's date of birth. ,.checlring account nllmber, routing n'lmber and the20

usernnme and password to access the accotmt oline, for fiReen dollars ($15) each or twenty dollars .2 1 
.

($20) each, if the Enroll also includes the PW . (32) ELIT3's irimhzal activities in furtherance of22

the enterprise include, but are not lim ited to, llnlawful knnKfer and use of a means of identification. '
23

( xxi) Defendant 1331 JOHN DOE 6 a.k-a. Fozzy (hereafter :::33)24 
.

FOZZY'') is a Vendor of dllmps in the Carder.su organization, whose prices range.from twelve25 
.

dollars ($12) to one hundred dollars ($.100), depending on the qumztity purchased and the .26 
.

19
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*

1 eographical loéation âom which the dllmps originate. Dllmps from the Untted States
.
are sold to; 

. :

2 members as the lemst expensive and dllmps *om Emope are sold as t1% most expensive.

3 (33) FOZZY'S criminal aotivities in furtherahce of the enterprisç include, but are not limlted to,

. 4 pzgjs-çslion pf fifleen (1 5) pr.rpore courtlçrfei.t and unaut.horized access devlpr: .. -.

5 (xxii) Defendant (34) JOIIN DOE 7 a.k.a. ,vitmlm mk.a. Lermentov

6 (hbreafterttl3d.) .W TRUM'')is avendorof dlpmps inthe Carder.suorganization, whqse pricesmngg

7 from ûReen dollars ($15) to one hundred dollars ($100), depçnding on tlw quantity purchmsed atzd

8 the geographical location from which the dump.
j originpte. Dtlmps fw m the United States are sold
. 

e'

p to members as the least expensive and dllmps f'rom Bùrope are sold as the most expensive.

10 (34) .W TRUM'S criminal activitîes in furthermwe of jhe enterprise include, but are not limited to,

.1 1 possession of fifteen (15) or more cotmterfeit and tmauthorized access devices.

12 (xxiii) Defindant (35) mk.a. Panthera.k.a- Elzphoric

13 a.k.a. Darkmth, (hereafter :$(35) ').' i.s a Vendor of dllrnps in the Cardensu orgnnization,

14 whose least expensive prices begin at twenty dollars ($20) for United States dllmps. (35)

15 s criminal açtivities in furtherance of the entepris: include, but m'e not limite' d to,

16 possession of fiheen (15) or more cotmterfeil and uùauthod4ed access'devices.

1,7 (xxiv) Defendant (36) JOIIN DOE 8 mk.a. 'I'M (hereafter i$(36) TM'') is

a Vendor of dllmps and CVVS in the Carder.su organization, which he sells to members through his
18 .

automated website. (36) TM advertiqes lkis automated website on the Carder.su organization's19 
. '

() websites. (36) TM 's criminal activities in furtherarme of the enterprise include? but are not limited2

to possession of fifteen (15) or more cotmterfeit and lmsuthorized access devices.2 1 '

.zz (xxv) . Defendant (37) JOl>  DOE 9a.k.a. Zoomera.k.a Deputatthereoer

:9(37) ZOQMEW') is a Vendor in the Carder.su orgnnization of: stolen Paypal accounts, which23

include a victim's usemnm e atld the password necessary to access the aocotmt; Proxies, which are
24

achieved by botmcing from one computerto another to hide amember's true originating P  address;
25

Fullz; and Credit Card Checking and lnformation Loolmps, which include Social Securtty numbers.
26

20
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1 dates ofbixth andmothùrs' maiden nnmes. (372 ZooMERprovides this servke to membepo ough

*2 an automated website, wllich he advertises on çsthe Cardensu organization's'' websites. (37)

3 ZOOM ER is also a Vender of daxmps, wlzich he sells to members at prices ranging 9om Efteen

. . 4 .f1 ollazs f$ 15) to one hgnlred fifty dollars ($150), depend..img gn...th.e quNtl.ty 'purchased and t.he '.. -
j * . :
#

5 geographical location 9om which the dllmpsioriginate. (37) ZOOM ER sell dumps from theunited
' 

States as the lemst expensive ané dllmps from Europe as the most expensivc. (37) ZOOMER'S6

7 cdm inal activities infurtherance of the enteo riseholude,butrenotlimitedtoypossession of sReen

à (15) or more counterfeit and unauthorized access devices.

9 (xxvi) Defendant (38) JOIO  DOE 10 a.k.a. Centurion mereafter $1:38)

10 CENTURION'') is avendor of d'xmps in the Carder.su organization, which he sells to members at

ricesrangingfrom uneendollrjtsislioeighvdoilrjtssol.dependingoniequxtivp.chased1 1 p

12 =dtheglovapucallocationâomwuchiedx psouo ate.l38) cExrum oxsellsd,lmpspom

13. tlle United States as the least expénsive atld dlAmps 9om Europe as the most expenqive.

14 (38) CENTURION'S criminal activities in furtherance of the enterprise include, but are not limited

15 to, possession of fifteen (15) or more counterfeit and tmauthorized access devioes. .
' . .

j6 (xxvii) Defendant (391 JOIIN DOE 11 mk.a. Consigliori (hereafter *(39)

17 CONSIGLIORI'') is a Vendor of dllmps in the Carder.su organization and sells oounterféit blnnk

lastic cards to members for fifteen dollars ($15) eacà, and embossed oounterfeit credit cards for1 8 P

twenty dollars ($20) each. :1E39) CUNSIGLIORI'S criminal activities in furtherance of the19

enterprise incltlde, but aze not limited to, possession of device-mnking equipment.20

21 e. M embers - An individual seeking m embership in the Carder.su.organization

must' suocessfully complete a n'lmber of sectu'ify features designed to protect the organizafon from22

infilkation by 1aw enforcement or members of rival criminal organizmions. 6ne such seourity23

feature requires a prospective mem ber to be formally vouched for by at lemnl two other members in24

good standing. Once m embership is granted, m em bers use the Carder.su organization's wtbqites as25

'svirtual clubhouses'' to gather together with other members to share infozmation and to solicit and26

21
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1 recruit other members to engage in activities, including but not limited to crl-minal activities, in order

2 to achieve the common objectives of tlle enterprise. Members use the Carder.su orge zation's

3 vendors, by 'way of the orgnnlzxtion's websites, to buy produc? and services, such as, credit card

d @se identifcation docllmentsa-%d (tWr çpptra#ppd, Mpmbers shle iloqn' >tion thrqugh4. llmpst . .-  .

5 the orgnnlezation's websites to teach other mem bers how to engage in riew criminal activi, ties and

6 how best to pepemate existirfg criminal schemes. Members ve periodically appointed by the

7 Administratorto act'ms aRèviewer. Reviewers exnm ine andtest produofs and services thatm embers

8 of the Cafder.su organization desire t? advertise and sell on the Crder.su orgnnigation's websites.

9 lndividual disputes be> een members are settled by the Admihiskator and M oderators. If a dispute

10 is decided adversely to a particular Member, if Members al'e folmd to be disloyal to the Carder.su

1 1 organization, or if Members behave in a mnnner that impedes achieving the common objectives of

12 the enterprise, the Administrator will mete out punishments, up to and including, skipping them of

' ja their m emberships and bnrring them 9om accessing the Carder.su orgnnization's Websites.

( i) Defendant (21) MICHARL LOFTON mk.a. Killit a.kya. Lofeazy, .14

(hereaftertdlzlj LOF1'ON''), is amemberof the&arder.suorgmlization. (21) Lonr Npnrticipates15 
.

in the enterprise, acting tmder the direction of and in concert with other members of the enterprise16

' 

in carrying out llnlavul and other activities in flxrtherance of the conduct of the enterprise's affairs.17

(2 l ) LOFTON'S criminal activities in furtherance of the enterprise include, but are not limited to,18

production and trnfficlcing in cotmtedkit identification zocllments, and 'lnlawful transfer and use of19 
.

a means of identification.20

( ii) Defendant (22) SIHYANG GOU mk-a. Cder, (heree er ç$(22)2 1

GOU''), is a member of the Carder.su orgnnization. (22) GOU participates i)l tlw enterprise, acting
22

i in cmving out lmlavfultmder the direction of and in concert with other members of the enterpr se
23

and other activities in fllrtherance of the oonduct of the entprprise's affairs. (22) GOU's criminal24

activities in furthernnce of the enterprise include,. but are not limited to, production and traftsckipg25

26

22
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; .
1 in oounterfeit identiiication docllments, and possession of fReen (15) or more counterfeit and

2 lmauthorized access devices.

3 ( iii) Defendant (23) DAW D RAY CAMEZ mk.a. Bad Man mk.a.

4 Doctorsex..mereafter ::r231 CAM'EZ''I. is a member of thé Carder.su om anization. r231 CAM'EZ

5 pm icipates in the enterprise, acting tmder the direction of and in concert with other m emberà 4f the

6 enterprise in canying out llnlawful and other activities in fllrtherance of the conduct of the

7 enteprise's nffairs. (23) CAMEZ'S criminal activities in furtherance of the enterprise include: but .

8 aze not limited to, production and kafficldng'in counterfeit identilcation documents, jossession of

9 fifteen. (15) or more cotmterfeit ahd tmauthorized access devices, and conspiracy to possess device-

10 maldng equipment. '

1 1 ( iv) Defendant (24) CAMERON HANKISON a.k.a. Kilobit, (hereo er

12 t'(24) HARRISON'), is a member of the Cgdqr.su orgnnization. (24) HARRISON participates

i the entemrise, acting urzer tlze direction of and in conoert with other members' of the enterprise13 n

14 in carrying out anlawful and other activities in fllrtherance of the conduct of the enterprise's affairs.

j (24) HARRTSON'S iriminal activities in furfherance of the enserprise include, but are not limited1

6 to, production and trafficldng in counterfeit identv cation doollments, possession of fiûeen (15) or1

more cotmterfeit and unauthorized access devices, and tmlawful trnnqfer and use of a mean.s of17

identifcation.1 8

( v) Defendant (25) a.k.a. Qiller,19

(hereafter $'(25) '), is a member of the Carder.su organization. (25)20

participates in the enterprise, acting tmder the direction of and in concert with other members of the
2 1

enterprise in carrying .out 'lnlawful arld other activities in furthermwe of the conduct of the
22

enterprise's nff-airs. (25) s criminal activities in furtherance of the enterprije include,23

but are not limited to, production andknm clcing in cotmterfeit identification doczlments, conspiracy
24 , .

to produce and trafsc in counterfeit identification documents, and possessiozi of tm een (15) ormore25

cotmtedbit and tmauthorized. access devices.
26

23
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1 ( vi) Defendnnt (26) DUVAUGHNBIJTLERaX.m Maclrm' nnn, (hereo er

2 *(26) BUTLERD, is a member of the Cardervsu orgnnization. (26) BUTLER participates in the

3 enterprise, acting tmder the direction of and in ooncert with other' m' embers of the enterpdse in

. / J
4 cakryiqg.qut kmlawftttapd.pther activiljes in V'tll* erglwe psthe conduçt of.lhe ent..ep. ri...p.'!

5 (26) BUTLKA'S criminal activities in fnrfherance of the enterprise include, but are not limitod to,

6 using and traffclrlng in tmauthorized access dekices, possession of tm een (15) or more cotmterfeit

7 and tmauthorized access devices, and conspirac'y to possess device-m nking equipment.

8 ( vii) Defendant (27) FREDRICK TH. OMXS a.k.a lstllnnaa (hereaRer

9 $:(27) THO M AS''), is a member of the Cardervsu orgarzization. (27) THOMAS pm icipates in the

10 enteprise, acting under the diroction of and in concert w 1t.1: other m embers of the entprprise in

l 1 carrying out unlawful and other activities in ilrfherance of the conduct of the enterprise's affairs.

1'2 (27) THOM AS'S criminal aotivities in furtherance of the enterprise include, but are not limited to,

13 unlawful kansfer and use of a means of identifcation, and possession of fifteen .(15) or more

14 cotmterfeit and tmauthorized access devices.

( viii) Defeoant g2d) JOIIN DOE 1 a.k.a Sennao7l, (hereafter ::(28)15

16 SENNA071n) is a member of the Carder.su organization. M  such, the defendant pm icipates in the

1./ enterprise, acting under the direotion of and in concert with other m embers.of the enterprise in

carrying out tmlawful and other activities in fartherance of the conduct of the enterprise's affairs.1 8

$:(28) SENNAO7I'S criminal activities in furtherance of the enterpdse include, but aze not limited19

to, production and trafficldng in counterfeit identification docllm ents, and conspiracyto produce and20

traffic in counterfeit ideritification doolments.2 1

( ix) Defendant (29) JOIIN DOE 2 a.k.a. Morfiy, (hereaher dt(2û)22

MORFIY''), is a member of the Carder.su organizadon. As such, the defendant participates in the23

enterprise, acting tmder the direction of and in concert.with other members of the enterprise in24 
.

carrying out tmlawful and other activities in furtherance of the conduct of the enterprise's. affairs.25

(29) M ORFIY'S criminal activities iri fllrtherjnce of the entemrise include, but are not limited to,26

24
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1 production and trao cking in counterfeit identïcation docrments, cènspiracy to produce and trnY c

2 in cotmterfeit identificétiùn documents, and conspiracy to possess device-making equipment. .

3

4 . . . . . CCVW  CH
...-  .. 

( y u su jujyuguxtj soajjjj gjjwukjjtjul'Rrti i/Rtf iR R RC C
. 

*

5

TlTR RACU TEERING W OLATION '6 
-

7 1 . Paragraphs 1 tkough 5 of the General Allegations Section ate hereby realleged and

8 incorporated as if fully set forth herein.

9 2. From a date llnknown but not latçr than on or aboutNovem ber 22, 2005, tllrough où

10 or about June 201 1, w1t.11 both dates being :pproximate and inclùsive, in the District of Nevada and

i

1 elsewhere,1

12 (11
E21

17 E31 KOSTYUKOV;
(4) BOOZER 111:

14 (51
(6) MONTECALVO;

15 V1
(8)

6 (9) ;1
(10) HAGGERTY;
(11)17
(12)
(13J18
(14)
(15) ' ;19 

.

I 161
E17)20

. (1g)
119)21
(21) LUPINON;
(221 GOU;22 

w :z(23) CA ;
b 6241 '2

(25)
(26) ;24 

Axks(27) THO ;
(28) SENNAO7I;25
(291 MORFW ;
(304 GRUBER;26

25 %
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1 (31) M AW TRO;
(32) ELIT3;

2 (33) FOZZY;
(343 .W TRUM ' '

3 (35)
(36) TM;

4 (3'/j zoov lœ ; . . .
(38) CENINURIONi arkd

5 (391 CONSIGLIORI;

6 the defendants herein, including others known 'and llnknown, being persom  who are m embers of,

7 employed by, and associatedwiththe Carder.su organization desoribed above, an epterprise engaging

8 in, and the activities of which affects interstate and foreign commerce, llnlawfully, and lœowingly

9 did conduct and participate, directly and indirectly, in the conduct of the affairs of that enterprise

through apattern of racketeee g acévityy that is,o oughthecomm ission ofthe following acts, m ore

1 1 fully described in Racketeering Acts 1 through 109, below.

THE PATTERN OF RACK ETEEU G ACTB qTY

j3 3. The pattem of racketeee g aotivity, ms that term is defined in Title 18, United States

Code, Sections 196141) and (5), consisjed of:

RACKETEERING ACTS INVOLVING STOLEN M EANS OF IDENTIFTCATION
AND COUNTERFEIT D ENTIFICATION DOCUW NTS

R keteerinz Acls 1 throueh 15ac -

Unlawful Trafficldng in and Pro.duclion of False ldentification Documents17

4. Op or about each of the dates set forth below', in the State and Federal District of1 8

Nevada, and elsewhere,1 9

(3) KOSTYUKOV;20
(4) 111;
(5121 

Ay vo;(6) MON'TEC .
(21) LOH QN;22
(22) GOU;
(23) CAMEZ;23 

uaupysox.(24)
(25)24 
zgj sxxxwtpl.; andE
(29) MOG W ; .25

26

26
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. 

'

1 defendant.s herein, together with and aiding and abetting oné another and other members and

2 assooiatos of the Carder.ju organizasion, including others known and llnlrnown, did knowingly and

3 witlmut lawful authority produye, and did cauje others to prbduce, false identilcation doolments,

4 wllich,wefe trnnsported in th. t,mail. in th, e.cnurse.of the mmuthorized prqdmjion, 11) and qflkçt.ing .. .
' 

. . . ''2 . . ''* . , . . . . . . : . .

5 interstate and foreign commerce, and the offensé hwolved the production and transfer of false

6 identiscation docllments that are and appear to be dziver's licenses, with each false iderï ficatiqn

7 docllm ent set forth below constituting a separate violation of Title 18, United States Code, Secuon

8 1028(a)(1), and Title 18, United States Code, Section 2:

9 ltA. Defendant Date Type of Dpcument Name

16 1 g21) LOFTON January 23, 2009 NV Driver's License M. Webb

1 1 2 (3j KOSTYUKOV April 24, 2009 NV Driver's Licenbe A. Kostyukov

12 3 (4) BOOZER II1 May 19, 2009 TX Driver's License M. Wright

13 ' 4 (22) GOU May 26, 2009 NV Driver's Lioense J. W anj .

5 (23) cAMlz May i'à,.2O09 ;. NV Driver's License J. Henry14

j 5 6 ' (3) KOSTYUKOV Jtme 30, 2009 (NV Driver's Licenje M. Ulitin

16 7 (5) September 14, 2009 (NY Driver's License D. Pena .

8 (28j SENNA071 ' October 6, 2009 'NV Driver's License L. Sadik1 7 
.

9 (3) KOSTVUKOV October 13, 2009 WA Driver's License R. Sadriev18 .

10 (28) SENNA071 October 20, 2009* NV Driver's Licénse A. Davis '19

2() 1 1 (6) M ONTECALVO November.g, 2009 VA Driver's Lioense E. Monteczvo

12 (29) MORFIY Novembir 19, 2009 NV Driver's License F. Grolsh21

. zg 13 (21J LOFTON February 1 1, 2010 NV Driver's License K. Marshal l

14 (24) HARRISON February 25, 2010 GA Driver's License . D. Mock23

15 (251 April 7, 201 l GA Driver's License D. Vasic24

e * 
'': '

25 '

27

Case 1:12-mj-02359-TEB   Document 1   Entered on FLSD Docket 03/19/2012   Page 27 of 50



l Racketeering Act 16
Attem pt to Unlaw ful Produce False ldene cation Docum ents

2

3 5. From on br about April 16, 201 1, until on or after May 18, 201 1, in the Staté and

' 4 F etçxgl. DisYct of Ngvgda. ', and e1=Fhere..(30) GRIRE..1t defendOt hçrçin. , tpgpth. er Fith otlpy
. 

*

5 members and associates of the Cardet.su orgnnizajion, including others known and 'mknown, did
'

knowlngly and without lawful authority attempt to produce, ahd did attempt to causr others to6

7 produce, false identiscation docllmeiits,.in and affecting interstate and foreign com' merce, and the

g offense involvéd the prodûction ahd trahsfer of false identification docllm enss that are and appear

9 to be approximately two (2) Florida driver's licenses, in violation of Title 18, United States Code,

10 Sections 1028(a)(1), and (9.

1 l Ratketeerine Act 17
Attvmpt to Unlawfully Produce False Identification Doèuments

12

6. Beginning on an llnknown date, but not later than February 1, 2010, and continuing13

to on or about February 5, 2010, in the States of Florida, New Hnmpshire, and elsewhere,14

(28) SENNAO7I, defendant herein, together with other members and associates of the Carder.su15

orgnnization, including otherj known and llnknown, did lm owingly and without lawful authority16 
. . .

attemptto produce, and did attemptto cause others to produce, false identification docllmertts, in and17

affecting interstate and foreign com merce, and the offense involved the production and transfer ofl 8 
.

false identiscation doolments that are and .appear to be a driver's licenàe, bearing the nnme S.19

salman, all in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1028(a)(1), arzd (f).20

Raclteteering Act 1821 
conspiracy to Unlawfully Produce False Identification Docum ents

22 7 Begirming on or about August 20
, i010, and continuing to on or about August 25,

23 2010 iu the state of Nevadw and elsewhere
, the defendants, (30) GRU'BER and IZII'LOFTON,' .

24 kmtogether withothermembers and associates ofthe Crdensu orge zation
, including others !1n own,

25 'did lmlawhzlly
, knowingly and intentionally combine, conspize and agree among them selves, and

26

28
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1 w1t1: others, to commit offehses against tlte laws of the United Stàtes, nmnely to knowingly and

2 without. lawful authority produce a false identification doolment, in and nffbcting interstate and

à foreign commerce, and the offense involved.the production and M nsfer of a false identiscétion

- .

' 

. - 4. document that is and appears to be a Cali. fomia driverls liçepse, be-nring tlw nnme 1.,.-Kipqep, all .in

5 violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1028(a)(1), and (9.

6 Racketeerine Act 19
Conspiracy to Unlawfully Produce False Identification Documents

7

s 8. Beginning on an llnknown date, but not later than M ay 22, 2010, and continuing to
* .

9 on or about Jtme 1, 2010, in the States of Iowa, Illinois, Califom ia, and elsewhere, the defendants,

(25) and (10) HAGèEltTY,.together w1t.1: other members and ajsociates of the10

1 1 Cardensu organi. 
zation, includhlg others known arld llnknown, did unlawfully, knowingly and

12 intentionally combhm  conspire and agree nmong themselves, and with others, to commit offenses

13 against thd laws of the United States, namely to lcnowingly and without lawful authority produoe a

false identification document, in and affçcting interstate and foreign commerce, atld tlw offense14 
.

' d ''nient that is and appecs to be ainvolved the produotion and kansfer of a false identification oc15

driver's licénse, bearing the name P. Petrovic, all in violation of Title 18 United States' Code,
.16 : '

Sections 1028(a)(1), and (9.17

Racketeering Act 2018 
.

Conspiracy to Unlawfully Produce FaIst Identification Documents

19 . known date
, but not laterthan June 8, 2010, and continuingto on9. segnnlngonan',n

20 O in tlw state of CalifoY a
, and elsewhere, the defendants, (29) MORFW ,or about Jtme 27, 201 ,

. . 
'

21 and (10) HAGGERTY
, 
together with other members and associates of the Cardensu organization,

22 'including othersunknown, didllnlawfully,knowingly and intentionallycombine, conspireandagree

23 nmongiem selvts
yudwithoiers?to commitoffenses againstie laws oftheunitedstatesynnmely

24 to knowingly and without lawful authority produce afalse identilcation docllm entk in and affecting

25 .interstate and foreign com merce, and the olense involved tlle production and transfer of a false

26

29
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. 
'

1 identification dothlment thai is and appears to be a'rexas driver's license, beming the nnme A. Ladd, .

2 aIl in vio.lation of Title 18. Urlited States Code, Seotions 1028(a)(1), and (9.

3 ' .' Ratketeering Act 21
Conspiracy to Unlawfully Produce False Idedtification Documçnt:

4 o.. . .. , . .,.. . ' .

5 l0. Besnning on an llnknown date, but not later th0 June 18, 2010, and continuing to
. 

'

6 on or about Jtme 25, 2010, in the Sàtes of #ew York, Califomia, and elsewhere, the defendant,

7 (10) HAGGERTY, together with other members and associates of the Carder.su organization,
v

'

8 including others known arid llnknown, did Imlawfully, lcnowingly and intentionally combine,

9 conspire and agree nm ong themselves, and with others, to commit offenses against the laws of the .

10 United States, nnmely 'to lœ owingly and without lawful 'authority produce a false identiication

' 1 1. document, in and affectinginterstate and forei>  commerce, andthe offense involved the production

12 and kansfer of false identificationdocllments that are and appears to betwo (2) driver's licenses, ont

j3 bearingthe nnme R. Harrison, andone bearingthe nnmeA . Huber, all in violation of Title 18, United

. 14 States Code, Sections 1028(a')(1), and (f). '
' 

Rackéteering Act 22 .15
Conspiracy to Unlawfully Transfer False Identification Docum ents

16
' j,/ l 1. Beginning on or aboût August 22, 2008, and continuing to on or about March k3, .

2009, in the State of Nevada, and elsewhere, the defendant (1) together with other1 8

' jq mem bers and associates of the Carder.su organization, including others lcnown and unknown, did

lmlawfully, knowingly and intentionally combine, conspire and apee nmong themselves, and with
20 .

others, to commit offenses against the laws of the United States, nnmely to knowingly transfer and '2 1

oause othersto trnnKferfalse identifcation docxlments, knowing that such docllments were produced
22

without lawful authority, and the production and kansfer of the false identifcation documents was
23

in and affecting interstate and foreign commerce, and the offense involved the production and
24

tzansfer of false identiscation docllrnrnts that are and appear to be driver's licenses, all in violation
25 .

of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1028(a)(2), and (f). '26

30 .

9
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Q

1 Racketeéèing Act 23
Possession of D:cum ent-making Implem ents

2

3 12. On or about Jarmary 1 1, 201t, in the States of Virginiw W est Virgirlia, Michigank

4 Califomia, .and elseWhere, the defendant (6) MONTECALVO. together withmtlke.z memktuagïd. ' - ...- . ---

5 associates of the Carder.su organizationa including others known and lznknown, did knowingly

6 produce, kansfer and possess a docllment-mslcing implement and authentication features, to wit:

7 lnminates used in the production of counterfeit Illinois driver's licences; and Photoshop templates

8 used to create counterfeit M aryland driver's licenses and cotmterfeit Florida driver's licenqes; w1t11
. '

9 the intent such dolplment-mnking implem ents and authentication features would be used in the

1o production of a false identifcationdoolment, orused inconjunctionwith another docllment-mnlring

1 implem ent or authentication featuze which would be so used, and the production, transfer and1

ssession of the docllment-mnking implepept and authenticatlon feature. was in anè affected '12 PO 
.

interstate andforeir  commerce,all inviolation of Title l8,united Stafes Code, Section 1028 (a)(5).13

Racketeering Act 24l 4
Conspiracy to Unlawfully Transfer, Possess, and Use A M eans of Identification

15

16 13. On or about M arch 15, 2009, in the in the State of Cormecticut and elsewhere,
.)'

(5) defendant herein, together with other members and associates of the Carder.su17 '

orgnnlzation, iùcluding others lcnown and 'lnknown, did knowingly and intentionally combine,
. 18

conspire and agree nmong them selves, and with othetsk to commit offenses against the laws. of the19

United States, nnmelyto knowinglytrnnqfer, poàsess and use, in o d effecting interstate and foreign20

commerce, without laWful authority, one ormore means of identincationof otherpersons, including2 1 
.

but not limited toy stolen credit and debit card accotmt nlxmbers, to wit: a Visa credit cazd account,22

. mlmber ending in X-6329, w1t14 the intent to com mit and to aid and abet the oommission of and in23

conneotion with any lmlawful activity that constitm es a violation of Federal lawy to wit: W ire Fraud
24

' ' 

jjin violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1343, and as a result of the ofense t e
25

defendants and any other individual committing the offense, obtained something of value
26

3 1
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il d llars ($1 000) or more in a one-year poriod, that is, at least two1 agpegating one thousan o , y

2 tàousand dollars ($2,000.00) in United States c= ency, 9om the Foxwoods Resorq Preston,

3 Connecticut, a1l in violation of Title 18, Urlited States Code, Secdons 1028(a)(7), and (9.

c-.-.-- - 4.. - - .. . .:-x.. ...u .: .-..--c:-.=..--:. R ackefnrrihg,Acts 25 through 36- - u- .- .. . . .---. ...- .- ....-:....- w .. .- . .- .
Unlawful Transfer, Possession,

,
and Use of A M eans of Identilication

5
. l

6 14. On or about each of .the dates set forth below, in the Stàtes of Nevada, Georgiw

7 Califom ia, N ew York, M issouri, and elsewhere, .

8 (81
(12)

9 E16)
(21j LOU ON;

10 (24) HARRISON;
(27) THOM A'S;

11 (311 M AXXTRO; and
(32) ELIT3;

12

13 defendants herein, together with other m embers and associates of the Cardensu organization,

14 including others known and llnlrnom u did a owingly kansfer, possess and use, in and eFecting

15 interstate and forei>  comm erce, without lawful authority, one or more mennn'of identifcation of
l .

'

i luding but not limited to stolbh and oiherwise stolen credit and debit cazd accotmtother persons, nc ,16

n'lmbers, account holdirs' nmnes, dates of biuh, Social Security numbers, addresses, andtelephone.17 
.

numbers,twith the im ent to commit and to aid and abet the comm ission of and in cormection with18

any 'mlawful activity that constimtes a violation of Fedtral law, to wit: W ire Fraud in violation of19

Title 18, United States Code, Section 1343, witheachinm nce setfoe below oonstime gaseprate20 
:.

violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1028(a)(7):2 1

RA Defendant Date Account Num ber Name22

25 (31) MAXXTRO November 25, 2006 X-5696 K. Kehoe23

26 (8) October 19, 2007 X-5598 B. Detrich24

27 (31) MAXXTRO February 28, 2008 X-1914 D. Stickler25
' ' 

28 (241 HARKISON June 26, 2008 X-6433 D. Olsen26

32
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' 1 29 (32) ELIT3 & January 29, 2009 X-5461 T. Biggs
(21) LOFI'ON

2 . . .
30 (27 M AS & March 8, 2009 X-5580 D. Ewart

3 (81
' 

4 3.1- . . -I32)=.E1.,I'#j --.-.-... .. . -.ootobef 30, 2009. .- .,J.--k - Xr* 78 . . .. . .. - -- . .T.'.'Miia.---..-- ....7-
. -7 . . 7 q . . .

5 32 (32) ELI'IB November 10, 2019 X-8237 S. Smith

6 33 (271 THOMAS & November 12, 2009 X-5637 J. Smith
(32) ELIT3

7
34 (32) ELIT3 November 13, 2009 X-5002 S. McDonald

8

9 35 (12) August 3, 2010 X-3337 D. Bossman

10 36 (16) September 16, 2010 X-5079 K. Yotmg

1 1 RACKETEERING ACTS IN VOLW NG
COUNTERFEIT AND UNAUTHORIZED ACCESS DEW CES

12

13 Racketeerine Act 37
Using aud Trafficldng in Ubauthorized Access Devices

14

15 On or abdut March l 201 1 in the' Staté and Federal Diskid of Nevada, and15 
' ' >

16 elsewhere, (26) BUTLER, defendnnt herein, together with other members arid associates of the

1 t Carder.su orgmlization, including others llnlcnowna did knowingly and w1t.11 intent to defraud, trnfsc

in and use an tmauthorized access device, to wit: a Chase Bnnk M astercard credit card aqcount,1 8

n'lmber ending in X-8088, wlzich was stolen and obtained witli the intent to degaud, and by such19

conduct dids on or about that smne date, obtain thi:gs of value in exoess of one thousand dollars20 
.

($1,000.00), that is, approximately one thousand fifty three dollars ($1,053.00) in goods and2 1

jmerchandise, from Walmmt store number 2593, in or around Las Vegas, Neva a, with said22 
.

trafficking and use in and affecting interstate 'commerce, all in violation of Title 18, United States23 
,

Code, Section 1029(a)(2).24

25

26 '

33
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1. Racketeering Acts 38 thrtm eh 97
Possessioh of Fifteen or M ore Unauthorizçd Access Devices

2

3 16. On or about each of the dates set forth below, in the State and Federal District of

. - - -.k$. Vmdpe-and.qlsewlwre, i . -...-..- ... . .. . .-. ------ - -s- ..-.--. . ..-:

5 E1)
(21

6 $1 BOOZER 1H;
(6) MONTECAT,VO;

7 (7)
(%

8 (9) SM'l ;
(10) HAGGERTY;

9 (11)
(12J

10 (13)
E14)

1 1 E15) M'I'TICRTAR;
(16)

12 . Ei71
(18)

13 (191
(221 GOf ;

14 (231 CAM-RZ;
. s4g yyauuysoN.
15 (251

(26) ;
16 (271 I'HOM AS;

(3.% GRIJBER;
17' (31) MAXXTRO;

(33) FUZZY;
18 (34) '

(.35)
(36) ; '19
(37) ZOOM ER; and

20 (381 CENTURION;

21 defendants herein, together with other' members and associates of the Cazder.su organizauow

22 including others known and lmknown, knowingly and.with inteht to degaud, di. d possess fifteen or

more lmauthorized access devices, that is, .stolen credit and debit card accotmt nllmbers issued to23

persons other than the defendants, and which are issued, owned, m mzaged and controlled by a24

is fmancial instimtion, account issuer, or credifcard system member within the judsdiction of the

26

34
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1 urgted states, in and G octing iuterstate énd roiqign commerce, wit.h each inennce set forth below

2 constituung a separate vtolation of Title 18, Urzited States Code, Sections 1029(a)(3), and (h):

3 RA Defendant Date Approxim ate No. Devices

- .- -.-  .. . ..4 38 -..-(1.) . . . .... Febnza1y.1.:1.,..2997..-. -. . . . - .- .29-.. - ..-.. - ---.v-p L .-.sr.
(31) M AXXTRO

5
' 39 (1) & Febrtzaty 15a 2007 lt
6 (331 FOZZYF

7 40 (7) April 10, 2007 more than 490

8 41 (8) Febnzary 22, 2008 22

9 42 (30) URUBER & February 23, 2008 25
(34) .W TRUM

10 ' 
.43 (341 .W TRUM May 7, 2008 40

1 1
44 (7q febmary 2, 2009 30

' 

k

'

12
45 (8) March 9, 2409 25

13
46 (6J MONTECAI,VO January 21, 2010 50

14
47 (6) MONTECAT.VO April 5, 2010 220

1 5 48 (26) BUTLER & Apiil 14
, 2010 15

(9) SMITH16

'49 (25) May 16, 2010 1717

50 (10) HAGGERTY May 27, 2010 2018

51 (10) HAGGERTY June 2, 2010 4019

52 (23) CAMEZ Jtme 7, 2010 3020

53a. (4) BOOZER IH ' June 9, 2010 20021 
53b. (4q BoozER H1 Jtme 10, 2010 50

22 54 (1 1) July 15
, 2010 50

' l J.. ' ' ' Z '. . . . u $ ;

23 11j July 21
, 2910 1465s (

. ! c . k . .
' ' 

74 j6 ' zcjj 2:$56 (7q . July ,

25 5,7 (11) July 27
, 2010 99

26
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1 RA Defendant Daie

2 58 (22) GoU luty 29, 2010

3 59 (12) Aqgtzst 30, 2019
(351

.... 

(y# ; j jomuy y jjj;60 (241 HARRTS ep
5 (3$)

6 61 (12J October 15, 2010

7 62 (13q Oçtober 15, 2010

8 63 (22) GOU Jmma:ry 12, 2011

9 64 (14) Jmmary 20, 20J 1

lc 65 (351 Februaqy 11, 2011

1 1 66 (27) THOMAS March 5, 2011

12 67 (15) MIJKHTAR March 6, 2011

jg 68 (11j March 15, 2011

14 ' 69 (36) TM Mm'ch 16, 2011

15 70 (14) March 18, 201 1

16 71 (37) ZOOMER March 18, 2011

72 (17) Mmch 18, 20111 7

73 (18) Maych 23, 201 11 8 .

74 (2) Marùh 24, 201 119

75 gl 1) March 24, 201 l20

76 (33) FOZZY March 24, 201 12 1

77 (36) TM March 24, 201122

78 (37) ZOOMER March 24, 201123

-/9 (38) CENTUZ ON March 24, 201124

80 (18) March 26, 201125 
.

8 l (34) .W TRUM March 28, 201 126

. 36

Approxim ate Nm Devices

34

22

m ore than 50

m ore than 36

69

29

69

28

46

15

20

20

20

20

20

18

20

22

20

23

23

60

20
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1 RA Defen
.
àaùt Date Approximate No. Devices

2 82 (3j) C:NTURION March 28, 2011 74

3 83 (33) FOZZY . Maroh 28, 2011 22

(35) - .. .. . .. ... (March 28, 29.11 -- ' ' -. u' . w29.. . . . . .. ..s-- -.--

5 8s (2q Mazch 29, 20i1 21
. . ; '

6 86 (35) April 6, 2011 38

7 87 (35) April 8, 201 1 20

8 88 (1) April 10, 201 1 21

9 89 E18) April 11, 2011 20

10 90 (36) TM April 11, 2011 20

1 1 91 (37) ZOOMER April 1 1, 201 1 l 9

92 (191 April 12, 2011 49

93 (3:) CENTURION April 12, 201 1 22

14 94 (19) April 22, 2011 12,710
. . . .).c . . J

15 (1t) . April 29, 2011 22
. *)..'.1 C $ j' ,)7 ): y il ? /q/ .r..S:r.''l

. 
T ''1

(14) Aay 12,'201 l 10O16 
..

g171 June l4, 2011 2017

Racketeering. Acts 98 to 103.18
Trafficlting In and Possessing Access Device-M aldng Equipment

19

17. On or aàout each of the dates set forth below, in the State and Federal District of20

and elsewhere, '2 1

(9) . s -22
(131
(15J M'TTKHTAR; and23
(39) CONSIGLIOW ;

24 defendants herein
, 
together w1t11 other m embers and associates of the Carder.su organizadon,

' .r

25 i cluding others knownand unknown
, did knowingly andwiththe intentto defraud, trafficinyhaven

26

0 37
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1 control and custody ovtr, and possess device-mnlcing equipment, that ij blnnk plctic cards used in .

2 the production of counterfeit access devices, which are issued, owned, marmged andcontrolled by

3 a finmwial instimtion, account issuer, or credit card system member within the jmisdiction of tlte

... .4. ..llnite.dasStats, in and affecti. ng interstatq.> ifnreign.com'm- Atcx, with. :açll iplqqg-t.ye-t fq-rth bçlqw-

5 constituting a separate violation of Title 18, United Sttes Code, Sections 1029(a)(4), and (h):

6 RA Defendant Dat: Approx. No. Plastlc Cards

7 98 E13) Jmmàry 5, 2011 7

8 99 (15) MIJKHTAR March 22, 2011 26
' 

VITH April 5, 201 l 10p 100 (9) S

1o 101 (39) CONSIGLIORI April 15, 201 1 20

j 1 l02 (39) CONSIGLIORI May 23, 20l 1 20

12 103 (3% CONSIGLIURI Jtme 9, 2011 20

Racketeering Acts 104 to 10913
Conspiracy to Traffiçldng In and Possess Accesj Device-M aldng Equipm ent

14
' 18. On or about each of the dates set forth below, in the States of Nevada, Comwcticut,15

Florida, New York, Califonaia, Arizona, New Jersey, North Carolina, M iclligan, and elsewhere,16

g5)17
(9) SMITH;
(101 TY;18
(11q

j (1311 
.(15) MUKHTAR;

(23) CAMEZ;20
(26) BUTLER; and '
(29) MORFIY;2 1

22 'defendants herein
, together with other members and associates of the Carder.su organization,

13 i cludingothersa ou x dllnkn'ou
,d. idu oenglyxdintentioniiycombine, conspireandavee.n

'24 hemselves
, 
and wii oiers,tocommitorensesaginstlelawsofieui ted States,namelysmongt

25 to knowingly and with the intent to deeaud
, tzafsc in, have contw l arzd èustody over, and possess

26
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1 device-maldng equipment, that is blnnk plutic cards used in the produotion of counterfeit access

2 devioek, Fhich are issued, owiled, managed and conkolled by afmancial instimtion, accountissm r,

3 or credit card system member within thejtuisdiction of the United States, in and affecting interstate '

rth below çp-llstlvttug l Kp-amle/olatipn of Titl:.- - . -  ..-4 -and foreign commercqy.M th-eqcl) inssarïççr j fo . ...---.. ...

5 18, United States Code, Sections 1Q29(a)(4), and (h):

6 R A Defendant Date Approx. Nd. Plastic Cards

7 104 (5) March 5, 2009 to 50
M arch 9, 2009

8
105 El3) March 19, 2009 27

9
106 (15) M'IJKHTAR & Febnzary 4, 2010 26

10 (231 CAMEZ

1 1 107 (2% MORFIY & May 18,.2010 10
(10) HAGGERTY

12
108 (9) SMITH & August 31, 2010 10

13 ' (261 BUTLER
. 

'

109 ( 1 1) Febnzary 16, 201 1 1 0 '14
(26) BUTLER

t 1 5

ALL IN W OLATION OF TITLE 18, UNITED STATES CODE, SECTION 1962(c).16

I 7 COIJNT TW O
.

Conspiracy to Engage in a Racketeer Influenced Cortupt Organization18

Pmagraphs 1 through 5 of the Oeneral Allegations Section are hereby realleged and19

incorporated as if fully set forth herein.20

2. From on or about November 22, 2005, up through and including June 201 1, the2 
1

defendants,22

(1) ak.a. Admin a.k.a. Support;23 
zj a.k w Graf;( r
f3l AI,EXANDER KOS Ov a.k.a. Temp a.k.a. Klbs;

24 -4j Mxclo BoozER III a.k.a. xu biknonekk.a. G4 a.ka. El Pal noE
mk-a. M z. Ri ht a.k.m mrdc87;2

5 5) a.k.a. Ray Wong a.k.a. Ray; .(
(6) ' CALVO a.k.a Nlghtmare mk-a. Tentlre44;26
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1 E7) .k.a lbatistuta. '
(8) .k.a. mk.a.

2 CCr - Trader >.k.a. Kengza;
(9) JERM AIXE SMITH wk.a. Siwrcharli.esi a.ia. Fairbusinessman;

3 (10) MAKW C, HAGGERTY mk.a. Waye; .
(1 1) a,ka. Bnnk Manager a.k.a.

4 Doc . ' ali er. .k.a. Comyk--  . . - . , - .. ..... ..-
. la bagnaleinnk.;(
5 (13) ,k,m Devica;

(14) .k.a. Trackz a.k.a. Bulba a-k.a. Ncux;
6 (15q Aàm  MITK-I-ITAA mk.a. Caliber;

(16j .k.w ltABlE AYAD a.k.a. Patistota;
7 (17) .k.a. Source;

(18) .a. C4rd3R;
8 (19) .k.a. Bowl;

(20) .k.a. Dorbilc avk.a. Matador;
9 (21) ' a. .a. Killit.mk.a. Lofeazy;

(22) SWIYAXG GOU a.k-a. Cder;
10 (23) DAW D RAY CAMEZ a.k.a. Bad Mm1 a.k.a. Doctorsex;

(24) CAMRRON HAQNTSON a.k.a. Kilobit;
'11 (25) mk-a. Qiller;

(26) D'UVAUGITN BUTLER mk.a. Mackmnnn;
12 (27) FQEDNTCK THOMAS mk.a lsturma;

(.28) JOHN DOE 1 mk.a Sermao7l;
13 (29) JOHN DOE 2 a.k.a. MoGy;

(30) JOHN DOE 3 a.lt.a. Grtzber;
14 E31) JOHN DOE 4 a.kna. Maxxtro;

(32) JOIG  DOE 5 é.lt,a. Elit3;
15 (33) JOI-IN DOE 6 mk.a. Fozzy;

(341 JOIIN DOE 7 mk,a. .vitTllm a.k.a. Lermentov;
16 (35) .k.a. Parlther a.k.a. Euphoric ât1c.a. Darkmth;

(36) JOHN DOE 8 a. .a. ;
17 (37) JOHN DOE 9 a-It.a. Zoomer a.k.a. Deputat;

(38) JOIIN DOE 10 a.1c.a. Cenmrion; and
18 (39) JOHN DOE 11 a.1c.a. Consigliori;

19 togetherwithotherpersons known andufllm own and others known artd llnknownybeingpersonswho

20 m'em embers of, employed byyand associated with Rthe Carder.suorganizationy'' an enterprise,which

21 eng>ged in, and the activities of which affected interstate and forei>  com mbrce, knowingly, ahd

?
22 intentionallf conspired to violate Title 18, Unlted States Code Section 1962(c), that is, to conduct

23 and participyte, directly and indirectly, in the conduct of the affairs of that enteprise through a

24 pattern of racketeering activity involving m'ultiple acts indictable tmder:

. A. Title ï8,
. 
United Statçs Code, Section 1028, identity theft and fraud related to25

identilcation docizments; and26

40
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' 1 'B. Title ls,urlited States Code, Section 1029, access device fraud.

3. It was a part of the conspiracy that each defendant agzeed that a conspirator would.2 .
$

commit at lemst two acts of racketeering activity in the conduci of the affairs of the enterprise. .3

AT,L IN W OLATION OF TITLE 18, UM TED STATES CODE, SECTION 1962418.

COUNTS TITRRE TW ROUGH SEVKNTEEN5 
. .

T/affickinj in and Prodtiction of False Identification Documents
6 On or abouteach of the dates s>t forth below

, in the State and Federal Diskict of N evada, and

7 lsewhere
,e

8 3) al,sxxxosR xostvvxov a.k.a. Temp mk.a, Klbs;(
(4) M ACEO BOOZER H1 a.k.a. Xu simone a-k.a. 04 a.k.a. El Padrino9 
k lti ht a.k.a. mrdc87;a. .

(5) a.k.a. Ray Wong a.k-a. Ray;10 
6) xowxltb Mox-rscay,vo à.k.axlghtuare a.k.a. Tenure44;(
(21) M'ICHAF,L LOFT'ON mka. Killit a.k.a. Lofeazy;11 
z2j sxnvAxg goU a.lc.a. cder;E
(23) DAW .D RAY CAMEZ a.k.a. Bad Mart a.k.a. Doctorsex;12 
24j t) mk-a. Kilobit;E
(25) .k.a. Qiller;13 
(2s) .Jb'àN boE 1 àtkta sennao7l; and
(29) JOI.IN Dot 2 a.k.a. Morfiy;14

15 defendants herein
, togethér with atzd aiding rnd abetting one another, and others known and

16 l'nknown
, 
did knowiflgly and without lawful >uthority produce, and did cause öthers to produce,

17 false identiicationdocuments, Fllichlwere ttansported in the mail in the course of tv unauthorized

18 production; in and affecting interstate and foreign commerce, and the offense involved the

19 production and transfer of false identification d6cuments that are and appearto be driver's licenses,

20 with eachfalse identiscation document set forth below constimting à separate violation of Titlo 12,

21 United States Code, Sections 1028(a)(1), (b)(1)(A)(ii), and (c)(3); and Title 18, United States Code,

22 Section 2, as follows:

23 Type of
Counts Defendant Dqte Document Nam e

24 ' ' ' '
THREE (21) LUFTON January 23, 2009 N'V DL M. W ebb

25

FOUR (31 KOSTW JKOV April 24, 2009 NV DL A. Kostyukov
26
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(4) BOOZER 1II M&y 19, 2009 -lW DL M. Wiight1

SW  (22) GOU May 26, 2009 NV DL J. W>g2

SEVEN (23) CAMEZ May 28, 2009 NV DL J. Henry3

EIGHT I3IKOSTYUKOV Jtme 30, 2009 NV DL M. Ulitin

(5q September 14, 2009 NY DL D. Pena5

TEN (28) SEM A071 October 6, 2009 NV DL L. Sadik6

ELEW N (3) KOSTYUKOV Ootober 13, 2009 WA DL R. Sadriev7

TWELVE (28) SENNA071 Qctober 20, 2009 NV DL A. Davis8 
.

THIRTEEN (6) M ONTECAI' ,VO November 9, 2009 VA DL E. Monteoalvo9

FOURTEEN (24) MORFW  November 19, 2009 NV DL F. Orolsh

FIFTEEN (21) LOFTON February 1 1, 2010 NV DL K. Marshall11

SGTEEN (24) HARQTSON Februmy 25, 2010 GA DL D. Mock

SEVENTEEN (25) April 12, 2011 GA DL D. Vasic13 ' ' ' .

COUNT EIGHTEEN
Attempt to Unlawful Produce False Idenqfica 'tlon Documénts; Aiding and Abetting

From on or about Apzil 16a 2011, tmtil on or after M ay 18. 201 1, in the State and Federal

DistrictoW evada, and elsewhery, (30) JOI>  DOE 3a.k.a. Gmberydefend=therein,togetherwith

and aidiqg and abetting otlwrs known and unlm own, did knowingly and without lawful authority

attem ptto produce, and did attempt to cause others to produce, false identificationdocllments,in and

affecting interstate and foreign commercç, and the offense involvtd the produotion and àansfer of

falqé identification docldments that are and appeàr to be approximately two (2) Florida driver's

21 licenses, in violation of Title 189 United States Code, Seotions 1028(a)(1), @)(1)(A)(1), and

22 (c)(3)(A); and (9; and Title 18, Unite4 States Code, Section 2.

COUNT NIM TEEN
Conspiracy to Uplawfqlly Transfer Falje Iden@fication Documents

24 ' ' '
Beginning on or àbout August 22, 2098, and coniinuing to on or about March 23, 2009, in

25 ' ' '

State of Nevada, and elsewhere, (1) .k.a. Admin mk.a. Support,
26
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defendut herein, did knowingly and intentionally com bine, conspire and agree w1t.11 others known1 
,

apd lmknown, to commit offenses agninh't the laws of the United States, nsmely to knowingly2

tzansfer and cause others to transfer false identifioation docllments, knowing that such docllments3 
.

wete produced without lawful authority, and the production and transfer of the fal. se identifioation

docurnents wms in and a/ecting interstate and forqi>  commerce, and the offense involved the'5

duction arld knnqfer of false identifiçation docllmenls that are and appeazto be driver's lic' enses,pro
6

all in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1028(a)(2), (b)(1)(A)(ii), (c)(3)(A), and (9.7

COUNT TMX NTY8 
unlawful Transfer, Possession and Use of A M eans of Identificationi'

Aiding and Abettlng

On or about October 19, 2007, in tlle State and Federal Diskict of Nevada, and elsewherej'
10

(8) a.k-a. .k.a. CC - - Trader a.k.a. Kengzw1 1

defendant herein, together with and aiding and abeding otheis knowh and unknown, did knowingly
12

kansfer,possess anduse, in andeffect
.jng interssate and forei> commerce, without lawftzl authority,13

a means of identification of another person, in, cluding but not limiled to, a stolen credit card accotmt
14

number, accouht holder's nnm e, date of birth, Social Seourity nllmber, address, and telephone
15 .

nllmber, that is, Discover Card accotmt nllmber X-5598; accotmt holder's name B. DeM ch; Social
là

security n'lmber x-9986; mld telephone nxlmber X-5662; with the intent to commit and to aid and
17

abet the comm ission ofand in cozmection with any ''nlawful activity that constitm es a violation (lf
18

Federal law, to wit: Wire Fraud in violation of Yitle 18, United Stales Code, Section 1343, al1 in
19 ,

violation of Title 18, United States Code Sections 1028(a)(7), (b)(2)(B), and (c)(3)(A); and Title 18,
20

United States Code, Section 2. .
2 1

COUNT TMV NTY ONE
22 Trafficking in and Use of Counterfeit and Unauthorized Access Devices;
. Aiding and Abetting
23

On or about Mmch 1y 2011, ingthe State and Federal DisGct of Nevada, arld elsewhere, (26)
24 . '

DUVAUGH N BUTLER mk.a. M ackmnnn, defendant herein, together with and :iding and abetting
25

others lcnown and tznlmown, did knowingly and with intent to defraud, traffic in and .use an
26
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*

. 
' ' .

unauthorized aocess device, to wit; a Chaso Bnnk M astercard oredit card accotmt, nllmber endng1
- .

in X-8088, wlzich wms stolen and obtainçd w1t11 the intent to' degaud, and by such conduct did, ofl2

or about that snme date, obtain things of value in excess of one thousand dollars ($1,000.90), that3 
,

is, approximately one thousand Gf'T tlu'ee dollars ($1,053.00) in goods and merchandise. from

W ahnmt store nllmber 2593, in or around Las Veg%, Nevada, w1t11 said trnm cldhg and use in and5 
. .

affecting interstate commerce, a11 in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1029(a)(2)6

. and (c)(1)(a)(1); and Title 18, United States Code, Section 2.7

COUNTSTG NTY TW O THQOUGH FIU Y FIVE8 
' 

Possession of Fiftèen or M ore Counterfeit ahd Unauthôrized Access Devices;
Aiding and Abetting9

On or about each of the dates set forth below, inthe State and Federal District of N evada, and10

elsewhere,1 1

E2) a.k.a. Graf;12 
yg EbwAp'n MONTECAT,VO a.k.aN1 44;
(8) .k-a. a-k-a.1b ' 'c

c- - 'lhfkdir'a.k.a. Keàjzky
(14J .k.a. Trackz a.kia. Bulba a.k.a. Ncttx;14 
(1 6). à.k.a. RLA'BI'E AYAD mk.a. Patistota;
(17) a.lt.a. souwe;lj 
(1s) .k.a. c4rd7R;
(191 a-k-a. Bowl;16 
(33-) ztjlo  DoE *6 mk.a. Fozzy;
(34) J. TIN' bOE 7 a.k.a. .vitrum avlc.a. Lemwntov;17 
(35j .k.a. Panthér a.ka. Euphoric mk.a. Darkmth;
(36) JUIIN DOE 8 a.k.a. TM;18 
(37) JOIIN DOE 9 a.lç.a. Zoomer a.k.a. Deputatiand
(38) JOIm  DOE 10 a.lc.a. Centarion;19

20 defendants herein
, together with and' aiding and abeging one another and others, known and

21 'lnltnown
, knowingly andwith intentto defraud, did posspss lmeen (15) ormoreunauthorized access

22 devices, that is stolen credit and debit card accplmt nllmbers issued to persons other than' the

23 defendants, in mzd nffbcting interstate and fopij!z commerce, with eaoh instanoe set forth below

24 constimting a separate violatipn of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1029(a)(3), and

25 (c)(l)(A)(l); and Title 18 United States Code, Seçtion 2, as follows:

26 .
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.couut beiendant Date1 
.

2 wsx'l'v Two (8j Februo zz, 2*8'r

a TM NTY THREE (8) March 9
, 20t9

4 WENTY FOUR A MONTECV VO January 21k 2010T

5 TWENTY FIVE (6q XONTECALVO April 5
, 2010

6 'rwBx'rv slx (141 Januaryzo
, 2011

1 TW ENTY SEVEN gl 1) March 15
, 2011

8 Twsx'ry EIeHT (362 I-M March 16
, 2011

9 Twsx-rvxrxs (14j March ls
, 2011

J10 
THIRTY (37) zooMElt March 18, 2011

1 1 THIRTY oNE (17j March 18, 2011

12 TI-IIRTY Two (18) March 23, 2011

13 'I-HIRTY THREE g2j March 24, 2011

14 THW TY FOUR (1 11 March 24
, 2011

15 THm TV Fw E (33) y'ozzv Mprqh 24, 2011

16 THm TY SIX (36) TM March 24, 2011

17 THIRTY SEVEN (37) ZOOM ER Mazch 24, 2011

18 THXTY EIGHT (38) CENYUR'ION March 24, 2011

19 THm TY NINE (18) Match 26, 2011

20 FORTY (34) .VITRtJM gash 28, 2011
' - 

.

21 FORTY ONE (38) CENYUZ ON March 2s, 2011

' 22 FORTY TW O (33) FOZZV March 28, 2011
. ' . 

.

23 FORTY THREE (35) Mirch 28, 2011

24 FORYY FOUR (2j March 29; 2011

25 FORTY FIVE (35). April 6, 20l 1

26 FORTY SG (35) April 8, 2011

45

Approximàte No. Devices

22

25

7.

220

29

15

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

18

60

20

74

22

20

38

20
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j Count Defendanï Date Approxim ate No. Devices

2 FOR'T'Y SEVEN (2) April 10
, 2011 21

3. .FORTY EIGHT (18) April 1 1
, 201 1 20

. 
'

.- .-.m -r . - - 4 y. wyoR-j.y XINE.. - .. .c.c ' l.zyj-aieaI,lx  ' . - . - .. v .,.u April 1 .1 
, 20 1 1. - - . . .- -..- .--... -- . .- - -..r. . ..20 --.--- r . .....: u . ... =  - - .. .

5 FYTY (37) ZOOMER April 11
, 2011 19

6 FITTY 0%  (19) 
. April 12, 201 1 49

y = cFIFTY TWO (38) CENTUNI'ON April 12
, 2011 22

g'FIFTY THREE (19) April 22
, 2011 12,7 10

p FIFTY FOUR (17) April 29
, 2011 15

10 FIFTY Fr7E (14j May 12
, 201 1 100

11 cotv s FIFTV sIx THA OUGH sxx'rv

Xrafficldng In and Possessing Ascess Deyice-M aking Equipment; Aiding and Abetting '12 
. . '

0n or abouteach of the dates set forthbelow, inthe State and Federal Distlict ofN evada, and13 
. .

elsewhere,
14.

g9) JERMAIN: SMTTH alt.a. Sircharlies7 a.k.a. Fairbusinessman;
15 (15j QASIR IVIsI1fH' I'AR a.lc.a. Caliber; and

g39)' JOHN 170: 11 a.k.a. Consigliori; '
16

17 defendants herein
, together with and aiding and abetting ohe another, and others lcnown and

18 llnknown
, didlmowingly andwith the intentto defi-aud, traffic ina have conkol and custodyover, and

19 possess device-innking equipment
, that is blanlc plastic cards used in the produciion of counterfeit

20 access devices, wlzich m'e issued, Mwned,'m anqged and conkolled by a fmancial irlstimtion, accotmt

21 issuer, or credit card system member within the jurisdiction of the United States, irl and affecting

22 interstate and fofekgn commerce, with çach instance set forthbelow constimting a separate violation

23 of Title 18, Urlited States Code, Seéi lons 1029(a)(4), (c)(1)(A)(ii), ahd (h); and Title 18, United

24 States Code, Section 2, as more.fully set forth below: .'

25

26 .
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COUXT Defendant bate Approximate Nb. Plastic Cards1

FIFTY SW (15) M THCHTAR March 22, 2011 262
. ' . .

' :3 FIFTY SEVEN (?) SV TH April 5, 2011 10

FPTY EIOHT (39) CONSIGLIORI Apri' l 15, 2011 20
7 -.** r .

FIFI'Y NINE (39) CONSIGLIOW  May 23, 2011 205
': J . .

. 6 SW TY (3% CONSIGLIORI Jtme 9, 2011 20

COUNTS SIXTY ONE AND SIXTY > 0
Cùnspiracy to Trafficldng In and Possess Access Devicp-M aking Equipm ent8 

.

On or about the dates set forth below, in the State and Federal District of Nevada, and9

elsewherea ' '10

. 
' 

v(9j char ie57 mk.a. Fairbusinessman; .11 
1 1j mk.a. Bsnk Manager a-k.a. . .E
Docllmènt M anager >.k.a. Cbrey; and '12 
26) DUVAIJGHN BUTLER a.k.a. Maclcm' nnn; ; 'E

13 defendants herein
, together * 111 others krzown and llnknown, did knowingly and intentionally

14 'combine
, conspire, confederate, and agree nm ong them selves, and with others, to commlt ofenses

. 
, '

15 i t the laws of the United States
, nnmely, to lm owingly andwith the intent to defraud, kafti.c 111,aga ns

16 have control and custody over
, and ppssess deyice-m aking equipment, that is, blnnk plastic cards

'

17 used in the pfoduction of counterfbit access devices
, which are issued, owned, managed and

18 tolled by a financial institution
a account issuer, or credit card system m ember within the .con

19 jurisdiction of theunited States, in and affecting interstate andforeignçommerce, witheach irfstance

. 20 setforthbelowconstimting asepazaleyiolationofTitle lsyunited States Code, Sections 1029(a)(4).

21 (b)(2)y (c)(1)(A)(ii), and (h), as more fully set fol'th below:

22 COUNT Defendant Date Approx. No. Plastic Cards

23 SWTY ONE (9) SO 't'H & August 31, 2010 10
(261 BUTLER

24 . . . . . ' . . . . . . .

25 SW TY TWO (1 1) Febnzary 16, 2011 10
26J BVYLER. (

26

-. 47 . '
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FORFEITIJRE AT,LEGATIöN1

l . The ilegations contained in Couhts One and Two of lhis Indictm ent are hereby2 
.

repeated, realleged, and incorporated by referencc herein as though fully set forth at length for the3 
. .

purpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the provisièns of Title 18, United States Code, Section

1963 and Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461(c). Pursuant to Rule 32.2, Fed. R. Crim. P.,5

notice is hereby given to the defendants that the United States will seek forfeimre as part of any6 
.

sentence in accordmwe with Titlé 1B, United States Code, Section 1963 in the event of any7

defendant's conviction tmder Cotmts'o ne mad Two.

2. The defendants,9 
.

(1) a.k.a. Admin mk.a. Support;10 
g2) .k.a. Graf;
(31 AT,E ER KOSTYUKOV a.lt.a. Temp mk.a. Klbs;1 1 
g4) MkcEosoozERllla.lc.a.m simonea.lç.a. 04 a.k.a.Elpadrino a.k.a, M r.

d 7;12 

g5j mk-a. Ray W ong a.kva. Ray; .
(6) EDW ANTI, X ONTECM ,VO a.k.a Nlghtmare a.k.a. Tenure44;13 
g7g mk.a lbatistuta;
E81 . vk-a. .k.a. CC - -Trader14 
a k.a. ltbzigzai' . .- .
(9) .TERM AINE SMITH wlt.a. Sirchazlies7 a.k.a. Fairbtzsinessman;15 '

(10) MAKYT. . a HAGGERTY a.lc.a. Wave;
(1 1) .k.a. Bnnk Manager a-k-a. Doollment16 

M ana er a.k.a. Corey;
(12) . a .t,, qt,k. ê?.y rNbagnaleânnk;17 
( 13) Ia-lcva. Devica;
(14) it.lç.a. TraclG a.k.a. Bulba a.k-a. Ncux;18 
gl5) ',.AéïR MIFITT4TA.It .k.a. Caliber;
(16j' p 'k.;a. a-k-a. Patistota;l 9 

,

(17) a-lç-a. Source;
(18) ?. 'r..(k,, .k.a. C4rd3R;20 
1 9) - ''.: ' ,.4., a lr a . 1). oqvl;E î 

. 
.
.;y . . :,g20) ' a

.1.c.a. Dorbik a.k-a. M atador;2 1 
(21) MICITAEL LOFTON a.k.p. Killit a.lc.a. Lofeazy;
(22) SHW ANG GOU a.k.a. Cder;22 
(23) DAW D RAY CAMEZ a.1v. ::. Bad Man a.k.a. Doctorsex;
(24) CAMERON HAIk'IYSON a.k.a. Kilobit;za 

. , , ,, k jjsy;(25) - . : ., :-t ..: -: -. . .a. ()
26) DUVAUGI'IIi ; '. ' 1' j ' i.a ;,', 1 t. a r i :.m Mackmnnn;(

24 (27) FRE D1k1C1f. 'j.'.I.'IO1-v1A.% a.lt.a lstunna;
(28) JOHN DOE 1 a.k.a Sermao-/l ;25 
(29) JOHN 1)OE 2 a.k.a. Morfil.'',
(30) JOH'N DOE 3 ''.Ix.a. Grube, .,26 
(31) JOHN DOl(a' .t t ' .::. Maxxtro;
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#

1

3

$

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

(32) JOHN DOE 5 a.kan. E! it3;
(33) JOHN DOE 6 a.lc.a. Ftgzzy',
(34) JOHN DOE *7 a.k.d. .'kitnllël a.k.a. Lermentov;
(35) ark-a. Panther a-k-a. Euphoric a.k.a. Darkmth;
(36) JOIIN D0E 8 a.k.a. Tlvl ',.
(3tj JOIIN DOE 9 n.k.a. Zoomer a.lc.a. Deputat;
(38) JOàN DOE 10 ;:. '.è.a. Ccnturiolt and
(391 'JOI-IN DOE 11 a.k:at'consi gti-ozi'; - '' ' - - - - '.r --'-''.'

have acquired and maintailted interests in violation of Title 18, United States

Code, Section 1962, which ihterests arc subject to forfeituze to the United SGtes pttrsuant to Title

United States Code, Scction 1963(a)(1);

ii. have an intcrest in, securi Iy ot claims against, and property and contracMlnl

rights which afford a source o f Lnfluenca () vtu'. the enterprise nnmed and described herein wllich tlie

defendants established, operated, cr)J$: ,'ol1e(J1, conducted, and pnrticipated in the conduct of
, in .

violation o' f Title 18
, United States Cbt5.' . Section ë 962, whichinterests, secutities, claims, and rights

are subject tb forfeiture to the United States pttrstlan! to Title 18, United States Code, Section 1963

(a)(2);

iii. have property constit' lting and derived from' proceeds obtained, dirtctly and.

indirectly, from racketeering activitl', in 'viliiatitla of Title 18, United States Code, Sectiön 1162,

which property is subject to tbdbiture :t) tlle United States pursuant to Title 18, United States Code,

Section 1963(a)(3).

3. Thè interests of the deJ : tdmlts stI i ject to forfeiture to the United States pursuant to

Title l 8, United States Code, Section 1963(a)(1), (a)(2), and. (alt3liinclude but aze not limitbd to at

least twenty (20) million dollazs ahd a1l interests and proceeds traceable thereto.

4. If any of the propvrty calm qt be ltlcated, has been knnqferred or sold to or deposited

with a third party, has beell placed lgcyont! tl te jurisdiction of the court, has been substanially

diminished in value: or has been com nèîngletl with other property which cnnnot be divided without

difficulty, thç biàuzrt shall order the lbrll :E ture t'f'ftTllr other property of the defendants up to the value

of at Ieast twenty (20) million dollars r., 12, ali inter'csts and proceeds traceable theieto as set forth in

Section 1963(m)..
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5. 'l'he above-nnmed defblldmlts, fmd each of 'ihem, are jointly and severally liable for1

the forfeiture obligations as alleged a1r ,)ve.2 .

All ptlrsuant to Title 18
, Unitet! Siates Code, Section 1963.3

DATED: this 1 # day of Jazttfaly
, 2012

A TRUE BILL:5

/s/ - - - -- - 
.6 y

ou pBRsox oF THE (A Jultv

7

DAY L e. BOGDBN8 
uéited states Attomey

9
. / . .z z,''e

10

B Y M . FRA11 
Axo w  w . DUN AN
Jtssistant Ilrûted St es kttorneys1

2

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

50

Case 1:12-mj-02359-TEB   Document 1   Entered on FLSD Docket 03/19/2012   Page 50 of 50


